
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

AGENDA 
 

Monday, April 24, 2023 7:00 pm Spellman Education Center  
  
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
*Consent Agenda Items 

 
I. Call to Order ............................................................................................ President Tiernan 

Salute to the Flag (led by Salae Garland 
and Ara Osimokun of Starkweather Elementary School) 

 
II. Roll Call ...................................................................................................... Ms. Cherashore 

 
III. Public Comments on Agenda Items (Sign-in Required) .............................. Ms. Cherashore 

 
IV. Approval of Minutes of the March 27, 2023 School Board Meeting ......... President Tiernan 

 
V. Approval of the April 24, 2023 School Board Meeting Agenda ................ President Tiernan 

 
VI. Superintendent’s Report .................................................................................. Dr. Reynolds 

 Student Representatives’ Report ....... Emily McElreavey, East High School 
    ............ Shaun Joseph, Henderson High School 
    ..................... C.J. McCune, Rustin High School 

 
VII. Approval of Personnel Recommendations ............................................................ Dr. Ulmer 

 
VIII. Approval of Consent Agenda ................................................................... President Tiernan 

 
IX. School Board Reports 

 
Committee Reports 

 
A. Education ............................................................................................ Director Durnell 

* 1. Approval to terminate the following Student Activity Account(s): 
•  East High School – Class of 2022 

* 2. Approval to establish the following Student Activity Account(s): 
• Peirce Middle School – TogetHER Club 
• Stetson Middle School – Stetson GSA 

* 3. Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 
• Rustin High School, Speech and Debate Team – Bloomsburg University 

03/17/2023 – 03/18/2023 
• Rustin High School, 10-12 Choral Music – Pocono Manor, PA 04/19/2023 – 

04/22/2023 
• Rustin High School, Science Olympiad – Penn State Altoona, PA 04/21/2023 

– 04/22/2023 
• Stetson Middle School, Science Olympiad – Penn State Altoona, PA 

04/21/2023 – 04/22/2023 
• Fugett Middle School, Science Olympiad – Penn State Altoona, PA 

04/21/2023 – 04/22/2023 



 
AGENDA Page 2 Monday, April 24, 2023 

 
 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
*Consent Agenda Items 

• Henderson High School, DECA 12 Grade – Orlando, Fl 04/22/2023 – 
04/26/2023 

• Rustin High School, DECA 9 - 12 Grade – Orlando, Fl 04/22/023 – 
04/27/2023 

• East High School, DECA 9 -12 – Orlando, Fl 04/22/2023 – 04/26/2023 
• East High School, Academic Team – Harrisburg, PA 04/27/2023 – 

04/28/2023 
• Henderson High School, Spanish 9 – 11 Grade – Ecuador 06/19/2023 – 

06/28/2024 

* 4. Approval of Final Revised 2022-2023 School Calendar 

 
B. Pupil Services .................................................................................... Director Chester 

* 1. Approval of one (1) Special Education Settlement Agreement 

* 2. Approval of Sweet, Stevens, Katz, & Williams, LLC Legal Services Consultation 
Agreement  

 
C. Personnel ........................................................................................ Director Herrmann 
 
D. Property and Finance .......................................................... Vice President Bevilacqua 

* 1. Approval of 2023-24 CCIU Core Budget 

* 2. Approval of 2023-24 Occupational Education Budget 

* 3. Approval to Authorize the Removal of Tax Liens on Uncollectable Parcels 

* 4. Approval of Resolution to Appoint Authorized Signers 

* 5. Approval of BoardDocs Management System 

* 6. Approval of 2022-23 Capital Reserve Project Award 

* 7. Approval of 2023-24 Capital Reserve Project Awards 

* 8. Approval of 2023-24 Capital Fund Project Award 

 9. Approval of Resolution to Adopt Proposed Final Budget for the 2023-24 Fiscal 
Year 

 
E. Policy Review Committee ...................................................................... Director Fleming 

* 1. Approval of Revised Policy 251: Students Experiencing Homelessness, Foster 
Care or other Educational Instability, Second Reading 

* 2. Approval of Revised Policy 830 Electronic Data Storage (formerly known as 
Breach of Computerized Personal Information), Second Reading 

* 3. Approval of Revised Policy 003: Functions, Second Reading 

* 4. Approval of Revised Policy 004: Membership, Second Reading 

* 5. Approval of Revised Policy 005: Organization, Second Reading 

* 6. Approval of New Administrative Guideline: 005AG1 Board Organization 
Guidelines, Second Reading 

* 7. Approval of Revised Policy 113.1: Discipline of Students with Disabilities, First 
Reading 

* 8. Approval of Revised Policy 216: Student Records, First Reading 

* 9. Approval of Revised Policy 218: Student Discipline, First Reading 



 
AGENDA Page 3 Monday, April 24, 2023 

 
 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
*Consent Agenda Items 

* 10. Approval of New Administrative Guideline 830AG1: Electronic Data Storage 
Guidelines, First Reading 

* 11. Approval of Revised Policy 006.3: Broadcasting Board Meetings, First 
Reading 

* 12. Approval of Revised Policy 009: Policy Development, First Reading 

 
Other Reports 

 
A. Intermediate Unit .............................................................................. Director Durnell 
B. PSBA Report ................................................................................ Director Herrmann 
C. Legislative Liaison ........................................................................... Director Fleming 
D. Equity Report ................................................................................... Director Durnell 
 

X. Other Business ........................................................................................ President Tiernan 

* 1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period March 1, 2023 to March 31, 2023 

* 2. Approval of the March 31, 2023 Financial Report 

 3. Approval of Amendment to the Settlement Agreement and Release with William 
H. Clinger Corporation 

 
XI. Comments from Residents (Sign-in Required) ........................................... Ms. Cherashore 

 
XII. Adjournment ............................................................................................ President Tiernan 

 
West Chester Area SD public meetings are live streamed and recorded for the purpose 
of public broadcast and posting on the Internet. The West Chester Area SD disclaims 

responsibility for both images, statements and/or actions made by those in attendance 
at the recorded public meetings. 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL BOARD—Meeting of March 27, 2023 

Documents previously distributed to Board Members are not recopied or submitted with 
this draft. Minutes of this meeting, in compliance with Section 518 of the School Laws of 
Pennsylvania and after approval by the School Board Members will be transcribed into 
the permanent minute book together with reports indicated (copy in). Routine reports and 
lengthy multi-page documents made a part of the minutes of this meeting are filed 
separately for permanent record. 
 

 

I. Call to Order 

 
The West Chester Area School Board met at 7:02 p.m. in the Spellman Education 
Center, 782 Springdale Dr. Exton, PA. Board President Tiernan called the meeting to 
order Ben Barmucci and Kira Rodrigues of Mary C. Howse Elementary School led the 
public in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

II. Announcement 
 
President Tiernan made the following announcement: 
Education Committee Chair: Director Durnell 
Legislation Liaison: Director Fleming 
Director Christy will serve on the Pupil Services and Education Committees. 

 
III. Roll Call  
 

Members Present: Vice President Bevilacqua, Director Christy, Director Detre, Director 
Durnell, Director Fleming, Director Herrmann, President Tiernan, Director Whomsley. 
Student Representatives: Patty Agustin for Emily McElreavey, East High School; Shaun 
Joseph, Henderson High School; C.J. McCune, Rustin High School. 

 
Members Absent: Director Chester 
 

IV. Public Comments on Agenda Items 

V. Name VI. Subject of Testimony 

VII. Judi DiFonzo B1. Settlement Agreements 

 
V. Approval of Minutes of the February 27, 2023 Monthly School Board 

Meeting 

 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Detre and seconded by Vice President 
Bevilacqua to approve the minutes of the February 27, 2023 Monthly School Board 
Meeting.  

 
On roll call vote, seven (7) members present voted “aye” with Director Christy 
abstaining. Motion carried 7-0-1. 



March 27, 2023 

 

VI. Approval of Minutes of the March 20, 2023 Special School Board 
Meeting 

 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Herrmann and seconded by Director Durnell 
to approve the minutes of the March 20, 2023 Special School Board Meeting.  

 
On roll call vote, seven (7) members present voted “aye” with Director Christy 
abstaining. Motion carried 7-0-1. 

 

VII. Approval of the March 27, 2023 School Board Meeting Agenda  
 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Detre and seconded by Vice President 
Bevilacqua to approve the March 27, 2023 meeting agenda. 

 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 
 
President Tiernan announced that the Board met in Executive Session on March 
13, 2023 regarding personnel and this evening, March 27, 2023 regarding 
personnel and a legal matter. 

 
 

VIII. Superintendent’s Report 
 
Substitute Superintendent Reynolds and the High School Student Representatives gave 
their monthly reports. 

 

IX. Approval of Personnel Recommendations—Dr. Ulmer (Copy In) 
 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Vice President Bevilacqua and seconded by Director 
Detre to approve the Personnel Recommendations as presented.  

 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 

X. Approval of Consent Agenda 
 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Herrmann and seconded by Director 
Fleming to approve the following Consent Agenda Items:  

Education 

1. Approval to establish the following Student Activity Account(s): 
Henderson High School – Unified Bocce 
Rustin High School – Everyday Hope 
Henderson High School – Key Club 

2. Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 



March 27, 2023 

-Henderson High School, PMEA Region 6 Band Festival 9th – 12th grade 
Pennridge High School 03/23/2023 – 03/24/2023 

-Henderson High School, AP Art, Art History and French 5 – England, France and 
Italy 6/18/2024 – 6/30/2024 

-Henderson High School, PIAA Boys & Girls Track Championship – Penn State 
University State College 02/25/2023 – 02/26/2023 

 

Pupil Services  

1. Approval of two (2) Special Education Settlement Agreements 

 
Personnel - none 

Property & Finance  

1. Approval of Change Orders – Renovations and Additions to Westtown Thornbury 
Elementary School 
GC-01 Time extension for Phase #1-From March 15, 2022 to April 

14, 2022 
 $           -    

GC-02 Additional spray foam insulation at party wall, per 
Westtown Township 

 $  6,343.98  

GC-03 Roofing material change  $17,200.00  
GC-04 Additional stone for construction access road  $  6,746.70  

 

2. Approval of Change Orders – Renovations and Additions to Glen Acres Elementary 
School 
RC-001 Infill area that has been demolished and 

decked by others, match existing insulation 
height with flat and tapered panels, adhere 
new cover board, cold adhesive install base 
and cap sheet, and tie into existing roof with 
Silver Flash and Garmesh.  

 $39,020.10  

RC-002  Build up walls to match insulation height, 
install tapered insulation, cover board, and 
roofing system at canopy that was demoed.  
Due to an existing steel beam being attached 
to the existing window system, a portion of the 
canopy could not be removed.   

 $16,061.00  

 

3. Approval to Exonerate 2022-23 Property Taxes, United Way of Chester County in 
the amount of $10,945.95 from parcel 41-05-1049-000 

4. Approval of 2023-24 Capital Fund Project Awards 

Project # Project Description Vendor 

2023-24 
Project 
Budget 

Award 
Amount 

C-071  Penn Wood Replace 
Roof on Gym and 
Seal Stone Wall  

 Garvey 
Roark LLC  

 $315,500.00   $ 261,114.00  



March 27, 2023 

C-073 Stetson Boiler 
Replacement 

 Devine 
Bros. Inc.   

 $280,000.00   $   79,100.00  

C-074 Stetson Replacement 
of Emergency 
Generator and 
Control Wiring  

 Power 
Premium 
Service 
LLC  

 $110,000.00   $   46,671.00  

C-077 Fugett Replacement 
of Emergency 
Generator and 
Control Wiring  

 Power 
Premium 
Service 
LLC  

 $135,000.00   $   59,796.00  

C-078 East Bradford 
Replacement of 
Emergency Generator 
and Control Wiring  

 Power 
Premium 
Service 
LLC  

 $105,000.00   $   36,219.00  

 

5. Approval of 2023-24 Capital Reserve Project Awards 

Project # Project Description  Vendor  
 2023-24 
Project Budget   

 Award 
Amount   

G-145 District-wide Fencing 
Repairs and 
Replacement  

 Esch's 
Fencing LLC   

 $  75,000.00   $    8,979.42  

G-145 District-wide Fencing 
Repairs and 
Replacement  

 Fence-
Sense  

   $  44,250.00  

G-146 District-wide Flooring 
Replacement 

 P.C. Curry 
Floor 
Covering 
LLC  

 $  75,000.00   $  63,237.00  

G-161 Penn Wood Music 
Room Flooring 
Replacement 

 P.C. Curry 
Floor 
Covering 
LLC  

 $  34,000.00   $  26,545.00  

G-162 Westtown-Thornbury 
PA/ Intercom Head 
End Unit 
Replacement  

 Intellicom 
Systems Inc.  

 $  35,000.00   $  33,975.00  

 

 

Policy Review Committee 

1. Approval of Revised Policy 200 Enrollment of Students, Second Reading 

2. Approval of New Policy 202 Eligibility of Nonresident Students, Second Reading 

3. Approval of New Administrative Guideline 200AG4: Residency Investigation/ 
Disenrollment Procedures, Second Reading 

4. Approval of Revised Policy 000 Board Policy/Procedure/ Administrative Regulations 
Guidelines, Second Reading 

5. Approval of Revised Policy 003.1 Board-Superintendent Relations, Second Reading 

6. Approval of Revised Policy 251: Students Experiencing Homelessness, Foster Care 
or other Educational Instability, First Reading 



March 27, 2023 

7. Approval of Revised Policy 830 Electronic Data Storage (formerly known as Breach 
of Computerized Personal Information), First Reading 

8. Approval of Revised Policy 003: Functions, First Reading 

9. Approval of Revised Policy 004: Membership, First Reading 

10. Approval of Revised Policy 005: Organization, First Reading 

11. Approval of New Administrative Guideline: 005AG1 Board Organization Guidelines, 
First Reading 

12. Approval of Revised Policy 006: Meetings, First Reading 

 
Other Business 

1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of February 1, 2023 to February 28, 2023 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MARCH 27, 2023 

STATEMENT OF DISBURSEMENTS SUMMARY  

FOR THE PERIOD FEBRUARY 1, 2023 - FEBRUARY 28, 2023 

     

     

GENERAL FUND DISBURSEMENTS 16,456,636.78  

  includes Technology,   

     Federal Programs and any Special State Funds  

 BILLS PAID 16,456,636.78   

 INVESTMENTS 0.00   

     

     

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND  1,428,968.80  

     

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND  1,149,867.66  

     

SPECIAL REVENUE - Athletics  17,698.87  

     

TRUST FUNDS   8,434.11  

     

CAFETERIA    333,098.60  

     

STUDENT ACTIVITY FUND DISBURSEMENTS 70,523.79  

     

TRUST AND AGENCY FUND DISBURSEMENTS 44,069.07  

     

     

 TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 19,509,297.68  

     



March 27, 2023 

NOTE: A copy of the details of the above disbursements is 

              available for review from the Board Secretary.      
 

2. Approval of the February 28, 2023 Financial Report 

 
On roll call vote to approve the above Consent Agenda Items, all members present 
voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 

XI. School Board Reports 
 
Committee Reports 
 
Education Committee - Director Durnell 
Pupil Services Committee - Director Durnell    
Personnel Committee - Director Herrmann 
Property and Finance Committee - Vice President Bevilacqua 
Policy Review Committee - Director Fleming 
 
Other Reports  
 
Intermediate Unit - Director Durnell 
PSBA Report - Director Herrmann 
Legislative Liaison - Director Fleming 
Equity Report - Director Durnell 
  

XII. Other Business - none 

  

XIII. Comments from Residents 
 

Name Subject of Testimony 

Amy Ficarra Board appointment 

Sara Getz Transparency 

Amanda Greenberg School safety 

Alexis Cooper Curriculum 

  

XIV. Adjournment 
BOARD ACTION: On motion by Director Detre, seconded by Director Fleming, the 
Board, on voice vote, agreed to adjourn at 8:39 p.m.  
 
 
 

 

Board Secretary 
 
 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.1 

 
 

I. Removal from Payroll 

a. Resignations 

1. Brenton Brady, APT Coordinator at Rustin HS, effective 5/26/23. 

2. Timothy Callahan, 1.0 Computer Science Teacher at .6 Stetson MS/.4 Fugett MS, 
effective 3/27/23. 

3. Timothy Conaway, 1.0 2nd Shift Custodian at Glen Acres ES, effective 3/13/23. 

4. William Jacobus, Grade 3 Teacher at Mary C. Howse ES, effective the last day of 
the 2022-2023 school year. 

5. Josiah Shoemaker, 1.0 Math Teacher at Henderson HS, effective the last day of the 
2022-2023 school year. 

6. Keidy Soliz Funez, 1.0 2nd Shift Custodian at Fern Hill ES, effective 4/28/23. 

7. Meghan Stolnis, 1.0 Special Education Teacher at Peirce MS, effective the last day 
of the 2022-2023 school year. 

8. Lynda Toe, 1.0 Technology Service Specialist II, effective 4/28/23. 

  

b. Retirements 

1. Pamela Bastings, 1.0 French Teacher at Rustin HS and Cyber Program, effective 
6/30/23.  33 years of service. 

2. Beth Ann Berstecher, 1.0 Speech/Language Therapist at Glen Acres ES, effective 
6/30/23.  20 years of service. 

3. Inez Burg, 1.0 Certified School Nurse at Penn Wood ES, effective 6/30/23.  20 years 
of service. 

4. James Byrd, 1.0 Physics Teacher at Rustin HS, effectively 4/5/24.  21 years of 
service. 

5. Janice Byrne, Grade 5 Teacher at East Bradford ES, effective the last day of the 
2022-2023 school year.  29 years of service. 

6. Dr. Crystal Dowdell, Assistant Principal at Henderson HS, effective 8/18/23.  22 
years of service. 

7. Donna Foley, 1.0 School Counselor at East HS, effective the last day of the 2022-
2023 school year.  22 years of service. 

8. Lesley Gordon-Guidera, 1.0 Staff Nurse at District, effective 6/9/23.  12 years of 
service. 

9. James Morrison, 1.0 Music Teacher at Starkweather ES, effective the end of the 
2022-2023 school year.  38 years of service. 

  10. Margaret Nawn, 1.0 Caseworker at Fern Hill ES/Exton ES, effective 9/22/23.  15 
years of service. 

  11. Julie Robertson, 1.0 Math Teacher at East HS, effective the last day of the 2022-
2023 school year.  24 years of service. 

  12. Padgett Smith, 1.0 K-2 Life Skills Support Teacher at East Bradford ES, effective 
10/6/23.  22 years of service. 

13. Tammy Taylor, 1.0 Librarian at Exton ES, effective 1/12/24.  24 years of service. 

  14. Joanne Trombley, 1.0 Technology Education Teacher at Fugett MS, effective the 
last day of the 2022-2023 school year.  28 years of service. 

 
II. Additions to Payroll 

a. Professional Staff: Contract  

   1. Lea VanLuvender 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.2 

 
 Placement 1.0 Computer Science Teacher at .6 Stetson MS/.4 Fugett MS, 

Temporary Professional Employee (Non-Tenured), effective TBD, 
Level 5, Step 3, $62,018. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from Longwood University 2017-2020, Master of 
Arts from Indiana University of Pennsylvania 2022-2023 

 Experience Computer Technology Teacher at William Penn School District 8/22/22 
– current 

 Certification Instructional I, Bus-Computer-Info Tech K-12 

 

b. Professional Staff: Long Term Substitute 

1. Molly Albright 

 Placement 1.0 Grade 1 Teacher at Westtown Thornbury ES, Temporary 
Professional Employee (Non-Tenured), effective 4/11/23, Level 1, Step 
1, $49,087.  During Ms. Wein’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Arts from Franklin & Marshall College 2017-2019, 
Bachelor of Science from Millersville University 2015-2016, Master of 
Science from Drexel University 2020-2023 

 Experience Building Substitute with Kelly Services 1/2023-current, Lead Teacher 
at Margaret George School 10/2021-11/2022 

 Certification Letter of Eligibility, Grades PK-4 

 

c. Administrative Staff: Contract  

   1. Kristin Bulgarelli 

 Placement 1.0 Principal at Exton ES, effective 7/5/23, $128,075. 

 Education Bachelor of Arts from Villanova University 1987-1991, Master of 
Science from Saint Joseph’s University 1993-1997, Principal 
Certification from Immaculata University 2015-2018 

 Experience Assistant Principal at Avon Grove School District 7/2019 – current, 
Title I Coordinator at Avon Grove School District 7/2008-6/2019, 
Reading Specialist at Avon Grove School District 7/1998-6/2008, 
General Ed. Teacher at Avon Grove School District 7/1995-6/1998 

 Certification Administrative I, Principal K-12, Instructional II, Reading Specialist, 
Elementary K-6 

 

d. Support Staff: Non-Bargaining 

1. Emily Cardow 

 Placement 1.0 HR Generalist at Spellman Education Center, effective 5/18/23, 
$70,625. 

    2. Francine Hatten 

 Placement 1.0 Account/Operations Supervisor at Spellman Education Center, 
effective TBD, $68,000. 

 

e. Support Staff: Contract 

    1. Jenna Ellis 

 Placement 1.0 Special Education Paraprofessional at Peirce MS, 7 hrs./day, 5 
days/week, 182 days/year, effective TBD, Group 1B, Step 1, $17.00. 

    2. Carol Maholland 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.3 

 
 Placement 1.0 Library Assistant Position at .33 Fugett MS/.33 Peirce MS/.34 

Stetson MS, 7.5 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 182 days/year, effective 
5/1/23, Group 1, Step 1, $16.75/hr. 

    3. Michael Martinez 

 Placement .5 Part-time Custodian at Penn Wood ES, 4 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 
182 days/year, effective TBD, Group 5, Step 2, $21.06/hr. 

    4. Marion Oliver 

 Placement 1.0 Special Education Paraprofessional at Glen Acres ES, 7 hrs./day, 
5 days/week, 182 days/year, effective TBD, Group 1B, Step 1, 
$17.00/hr. 

    5. Jane Wood 

 Placement 1.0 Secretary to the Assistant Principals at Rustin HS, 7.5 hrs./day, 5 
days/week, 262 days/year, effective 5/8/23, Group 2, Step 1, $20.75. 

 

f. Support Staff: Substitute 

 
 

III. Personnel Events 
a. Status Change 

 
Name Type From To 

Effective 
Date 

1. Allyson 
McCullough 

Support 1.0 Special 
Education 
Paraprofessional 
at Fern Hill ES 

1.0 Registered 
Behavior 
Technician at 
Fern Hill ES 

TBD, 
Group 1C, 
Step 1, 
$24.00/hr 

2. Anitha 
Potlacheru 

Support 1.0 Special 
Education 
Paraprofessional 
at Glen Acres ES 

1.0 ELD 
Paraprofessional 
at Glen Acres ES 

TBD, 
Group 1, 
Step 1, 
$16.75/hr. 

3. Brisa Rabago-
Paredes 

Professional 1.0 Spanish 
Long-term 
Substitute at 
Fugett MS 

1.0 Spanish 
Teacher at 
Rustin HS 

4/1/23, 
Level 5. 
Step 4, 
$63,018 

 
b. Involuntary Transfer 

 

 
Name Type From To 

Effective 
Date 

   1. Matthew Arrison Professional .4 Tech Ed 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS/.6 Tech Ed 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS 

.4 Tech Ed 
Teacher at East 
HS/.6 Tech Ed 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS 

8/21/23 

   2. Caitlin Bellucci Professional .8 Art Teacher at 
East HS/.2 Art 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

1.0 Art Teacher at 
East HS 

8/21/23 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.4 

 
 

Name Type From To 
Effective 

Date 

   3. Maria Bolner Professional 1.0 Gifted Teacher 
at East HS 

.8 Gifted Teacher 
at East HS/.2 
Capstone at East 
HS 

8/21/23 

   4. John Breslin Professional .6 Special 
Education Teacher 
at Rustin HS/.4 
Capstone at 
Rustin HS 

1.0 Capstone at 
Rustin HS 

8/21/23 

   5. Timothy Bryan Professional 1.0 School 
Counselor at 
Rustin HS 

1.0 School 
Counselor at 
Stetson MS 

8/21/23 

   6. Karen Carpenter Professional .2 Latin Teacher at 
Henderson HS/.2 
Latin Teacher at 
Rustin HS/.2 
Gifted Teacher at 
Rustin HS/.4 Latin 
Teacher at East 
HS 

.6 Gifted Teacher 
at Rustin HS/.2 
Latin Teacher at 
Rustin HS/.2 Latin 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS 

8/21/23 

   7. Amy Chessock Professional .8 Social Studies 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS/.2 Social 
Studies Teacher at 
Cyber Program 

1.0 Social Studies 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS 

8/21/23 

   8. Marshall Claffy Professional .8 Spanish 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS/.2 Spanish 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

1.0 Spanish 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS 

8/21/23 

   9. Daniel Coley Professional .9 Social Studies 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS/.1 
Social Studies 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

1.0 Social Studies 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS 

8/21/23 

 10. Anastasia Coni Professional .6 ELD Teacher at 
Rustin HS/.4 ELD 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS 

.8 ELD Teacher 
at Rustin HS/.2 
ELD Teacher at 
Henderson HS 

8/21/23 

 11. Kathleen 
Corcoran 

Professional 1.0 ELD Teacher 
at Fugett MS 

1.0 ELD Teacher 
at Peirce MS 

8/21/23 

 12. Lauren Costello Professional .8 FCS Teacher at 
Peirce MS/.2 FCS 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS 

1.0 FCS Teacher 
at Peirce MS 

8/21/23 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.5 

 
 

Name Type From To 
Effective 

Date 

 13. Tara Czerwinski Professional .8 English Teacher 
at Peirce MS/.2 
English Teacher at 
Cyber Program 

1.0 English 
Teacher at Peirce 
MS 

8/21/23 

 14. Melody Dela 
Cruz 

Professional 1.0 French 
Teacher at Peirce 
MS 

.6 French 
Teacher at Peirce 
MS/.4 French 
Teacher at Fugett 
MS 

8/21/23 

 15. Thomas 
Densmore 

Professional .75 Science 
Teacher at East 
HS/.25 Science 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

1.0 Science 
Teacher at East 
HS 

8/21/23 

 16. Kimberly 
DiGiandomenico 

Support 1.0 Special 
Education 
Paraprofessional 
at Stetson MS 

1.0 Special 
Education 
Paraprofessional 
at Peirce MS 

4/5/23 

 17. Ashley Dorman Professional .6 ELD Teacher at 
Peirce MS/.4 ELD 
Teacher at Fugett 
MS 

.8 ELD Teacher 
at Fugett MS/.2 
ELD Teacher at 
Peirce MS 

8/21/23 

 18. Daniel Ellis Professional .8 Social Studies 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS/.2 
Social Studies 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

1.0 Social Studies 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS 

8/21/23 

 19. Christian Fischer Professional .2 German 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS/.6 
German Teacher 
at East HS/.2 
German Teacher 
at Fugett MS 

.4 German 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS/.4 
German Teacher 
at East HS/.2 
German Teacher 
at TBD MS 

8/21/23 

 20. Shae Fisher Professional 1.0 Social Studies 
Teacher at Stetson 
MS 

.2 Social Studies 
Teacher at 
Stetson MS/.8 
Social Studies 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS 

8/21/23 

 21. Kimberly Freese Professional .6 Gifted Teacher 
at Rustin HS/.4 
Special Education 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS 

1.0 Special 
Education 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS 

8/21/23 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.6 

 
 

Name Type From To 
Effective 

Date 

 22. Margaret Fricker Professional 1.0 
Speech/Language 
Therapist at Fugett 
MS 

.8 
Speech/Languag
e Therapist at 
Fugett MS/.2 
Speech/Languag
e Therapist at 
Exton ES 

3/28/23 

 23. Ramon Gadea Professional .95 Music Teacher 
at Fugett MS/.05 
Music Teacher at 
Cyber Program 

1.0 Music 
Teacher at Fugett 
MS 

8/21/23 

 24. Sarah Gallagher Professional .6 English Teacher 
at Rustin HS/.4 
English Teacher at 
Cyber Program 

1.0 English 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS 

8/21/23 

 25. Amanda Getz Professional .6 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at East 
HS/.4 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
ILTH 

.8 
Speech/Languag
e Pathologist at 
Peirce MS/.2 
Speech/Languag
e Pathologist at 
ILTH 

8/21/23 

 26. Hillary Golberg Professional .8 Spanish 
Teacher at Fugett 
MS/.2 Spanish 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

1.0 Spanish 
Teacher at Fugett 
MS 

8/21/23 

 27. Kolby Gonzalez Professional .8 Social Studies 
Teacher at Peirce 
MS/.2 Social 
Studies Teacher at 
Cyber Program 

.6 Social Studies 
Teacher at Peirce 
MS/.4 Social 
Studies Teacher 
at Cyber Program 

8/21/23 

 28. Joseph Halloran Professional .8 Business 
Teacher at East 
HS/.2 Computer 
Science Teacher 
at Fugett MS 

.9 Business 
Teacher at East 
HS/.1 Computer 
Science Teacher 
at Fugett MS 

8/21/23 

 29. Rosemary 
Hetzel 

Professional .8 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Stetson MS/.2 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Rustin HS 

1.0 
Speech/Languag
e Pathologist at 
Stetson MS 

8/21/23 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.7 

 
 

Name Type From To 
Effective 

Date 

 30. Megan Hoopes-
Myers 

Professional .8 Math Teacher at 
Peirce MS/.2 Math 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

1.0 Math Teacher 
at Peirce MS 

8/21/23 

 31. Collette Keenan Professional .7 English Teacher 
at East HS/.3 
English Teacher at 
Cyber Program 

1.0 English 
Teacher at East 
HS 

8/21/23 

 32. Andrea Kuesel Professional 1.0 Intervention 
Specialist at 
Rustin HS 

1.0 Intervention 
Specialist at East 
HS 

8/21/23 

 33. Lorenz LaGioia Professional .8 Italian Teacher 
at Henderson 
HS/.2 Italian 
Teacher at Peirce 
MS 

.8 Italian Teacher 
at Henderson 
HS/.2 Italian 
Teacher at TBD 
MS 

8/21/23 

 34. Robert Lalka Professional .8 Health/Physical 
Education Teacher 
at Stetson MS/.2 
Health/Physical 
Education Teacher 
at Cyber Program 

1.0 
Health/Physical 
Education 
Teacher at 
Stetson MS 

8/21/23 

 35. Dina Lombardi Professional .6 Health/Physical 
Education Teacher 
at East HS/.4 
Health/Physical 
Education Teacher 
at Fugett MS 

.6 Health/Physical 
Education 
Teacher at East 
HS/.2 
Health/Physical 
Education 
Teacher at Fugett 
MS/.2 
Health/Physical 
Education 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

8/21/23 

 36. Maria Longo 
Capuni 

Professional .8 Italian Teacher 
at Rustin HS/.2 
Italian Teacher at 
Stetson MS 

.4 Italian Teacher 
at Henderson 
HS/.4 Italian 
Teacher at East 
HS/.2 Italian 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS 

8/21/23 

 37. Megan Loper Professional 1.0 Special 
Education Teacher 
(MDS) at 
Starkweather ES 

1.0 Special 
Education 
Teacher (Life 
Skills) at East 
Bradford ES 

8/21/23 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.8 

 
 

Name Type From To 
Effective 

Date 

 38. Mandy McClure Professional .8 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Mary C. Howse 
ES/.2 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Peirce MS 

1.0 
Speech/Languag
e Pathologist at 
Mary C. Howse 
ES 

8/21/23 

 39. Linda McElvenny Professional .95 Computer 
Science Teacher 
at Peirce MS/.05 
Computer Science 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

1.0 Computer 
Science Teacher 
at Peirce MS 

8/21/23 

 40. Robin 
McWilliams 

Professional 1.0 ELD Teacher 
at Stetson MS 

.8 ELD Teacher 
at Stetson MS/.2 
Gifted Teacher at 
Stetson MS 

8/21/23 

 41. Colleen Meighan Professional .6 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Rustin HS/.4 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Penn Wood ES 

.5 
Speech/Languag
e Pathologist at 
Rustin HS/.5 
Speech/Languag
e Pathologist at 
Glen Acres ES 

8/21/23 

 42. Sylvie Minier Professional .6 French Teacher 
at Henderson 
HS/.4 French 
Teacher at East 
HS 

.8 French 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS/.2 
French Teacher 
at Rustin HS 

8/21/23 

 43. Kelsey Morrow Professional .7 Computer 
Science Teacher 
at Peirce MS/.2 
Math Teacher at 
Cyber Program/.1 
Computer Science 
Teacher at Fugett 
MS  

.8 Computer 
Science Teacher 
at Peirce MS/.2 
Computer 
Science Teacher 
at Fugett MS 

8/21/23 

 44. Derek Murr Professional .7 Business 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS/.2 Business 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS/.1 
Business Teacher 
at Cyber Program 

.9 Business 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS/.1 Business 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

8/21/23 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.9 

 
 

Name Type From To 
Effective 

Date 

 45. Kelly Nunan Professional 1.0 Grade 5 
Teacher at Penn 
Wood ES 

1.0 Grade 5 
Teacher at 
Hillsdale ES 

8/21/23 

 46. Michael 
Orenshaw 

Professional 1.0 Social Studies 
Teacher at Fugett 
MS 

.8 Social Studies 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS/.2 
Social Studies 
Teacher at Fugett 
MS 

8/21/23 

 47. Margaret Page Professional .6 French Teacher 
at Fugett MS/.4 
French Teacher at 
East HS 

.8 French 
Teacher at East 
HS/.2 French 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS 

8/21/23 

 48. Stephanie Pauls Professional .8 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Hillsdale ES/.2 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Rustin HS 

.5 
Speech/Languag
e Pathologist at 
Hillsdale ES/.5 
Speech/Languag
e Pathologist at 
Exton ES 

8/21/23 

 49. Amy Payne Professional 1.0 ELD Teacher 
at East Goshen 
ES 

.6 ELD Teacher 
at East Goshen 
ES/.4 ELD 
Teacher at Penn 
Wood ES 

8/21/23 

 50. Sara Pilko Professional .8 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Greystone ES/.2 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Fugett MS 

.8 
Speech/Languag
e Pathologist at 
Greystone ES/.2 
Speech/Languag
e Pathologist at 
Starkweather ES 

8/21/23 

 51. Stephanie Riely Professional .75 Art Teacher at 
Peirce MS/.5 Art 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program/.2 Gifted 
Teacher at Peirce 
MS 

.6 Art Teacher at 
Peirce MS/.4 
Gifted Teacher at 
Peirce MS 

8/21/23 

 52. Jennifer 
Ronayne 

Professional 1.0 
Health/Physical 
Education Teacher 
at Henderson HS 

1.0 
Health/Physical 
Education 
Teacher at 
Stetson MS 

8/21/23 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.10 

 
 

Name Type From To 
Effective 

Date 

 53. Kaylie Rosenthal Professional .6 English Teacher 
at East HS/.4 
English Teacher at 
Peirce MS 

1.0 English 
Teacher at East 
HS 

8/21/23 

 54. Angelique Rucci Professional .6 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Peirce MS/.4 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Henderson 

.5 
Speech/Languag
e Pathologist at 
Henderson HS/.5 
Speech/Languag
e Pathologist at 
East HS 

8/21/23 

 55. Todd Saundurs Professional .8 Gifted Teacher 
at Fugett MS/.2 
Math Teacher at 
Fugett MS 

1.0 Gifted 
Teacher at Fugett 
MS 

8/21/23 

 56. Milton Scholl Professional .4 Math Teacher at 
East HS/.4 
Computer Science 
Teacher at East 
HS/.2 Math 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

.6 Math Teacher 
at East HS/.4 
Computer 
Science Teacher 
at East HS 

8/21/23 

 57. Annie Seagraves Professional .8 Art Teacher at 
Henderson HS/.2 
Art Teacher at 
Cyber Program 

1.0 Art Teacher at 
Henderson HS 

8/21/23 

 58. Heather Selgrath Professional 1.0 School 
Counselor at 
Stetson MS 

1.0 School 
Counselor at 
Rustin HS 

8/21/23 

 59. Michael St. Clair Professional .9 Social Studies 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS/.1 Social 
Studies Teacher at 
Cyber Program 

1.0 Social Studies 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS 

8/21/23 

 60. Shannon 
Strauss 

Professional .6 French Teacher 
at Stetson MS 

.4 French 
Teacher at 
Stetson MS/.2 
French Teacher 
at Rustin HS 

8/21/23 

 61. Matthew 
Taglang 

Professional .8 German 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS/.2 German 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS 

1.0 German 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS 

8/21/23 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.11 

 
 

Name Type From To 
Effective 

Date 

 62. Mary Anne 
Tomlinson 

Professional .4 FCS Teacher at 
Peirce MS/.4 FCS 
Teacher at Fugett 
MS/.2 FCS 
Teacher at East 
HS 

.2 FCS Teacher 
at East HS/.4 
FCS Teacher at 
Fugett MS/.4 FCS 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS 

8/21/23 

 63. Christopher 
Valle 

Professional 1.0 Science 
Teacher at Stetson 
MS 

.5 Science 
Teacher at 
Henderson HS/.4 
Science Teacher 
at Stetson MS/.1 
Gifted Teacher at 
TBD 

8/21/23 

 64. Ian Ziegler Professional .8 Social Studies 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS/.2 Social 
Studies Teacher at 
Cyber Program 

1.0 Social Studies 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS 

8/21/23 

 
c. Voluntary Transfer 

 
Name Type From To 

Effective 
Date 

1. Katie Alba Professional 1.0 Grade 3 
Teacher at Glen 
Acres ES 

1.0 TBD Grade at 
Mary C. Howse ES 

8/21/23 

2. John 
Blankenhagen 

Professional .6 Math Teacher at 
Rustin HS/.4 Math 
Teacher at Stetson 
MS 

1.0 Math Teacher 
at Rustin HS 

8/21/23 

3. Leigh Boggs Professional .8 Math Teacher at 
Peirce MS/.2 Math 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

1.0 Math Teacher 
at Peirce MS 

8/21/23 

4. Suzanne Brady Professional .4 Spanish 
Teacher at Stetson 
MS/.4 Spanish 
Teacher at Rustin 
HS/.2 Spanish 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

1.0 ELD Teacher 
at East HS 

8/21/23 

5. Sharon Dean Professional 1.0 Grade 5 
Teacher at Fern 
Hill ES 

1.0 English 
Teacher at Peirce 
MS 

8/21/23 

6. Danielle 
DiNatale 

Professional 1.0 Intervention 
Specialist at East 
HS 

1.0 Intervention 
Specialist at TBD 
MS 

8/21/23 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.12 

 
 

Name Type From To 
Effective 

Date 

7. Margaret 
Fricker 

Professional .6 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Fugett MS/.4 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at East 
HS 

.8 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Penn Wood ES/.2 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Starkweather ES 

8/21/23 

8. Kristen 
Gaudiello 

Professional .6 ELD Teacher at 
Penn Wood ES/.4 
ELD Teacher at 
Exton ES 

1.0 ELD Teacher 
at Exton ES 

8/21/23 

9. Katherine 
Helmich 

Professional .75 Science 
Teacher at East 
HS/.25 Science 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

1.0 Science 
Teacher at East 
HS 

8/21/23 

10. Jennifer Hogan Professional 1.0 
Speech/Language 
Pathologist at 
Stetson MS 

1.0 Gifted 
Resource Teacher 
at Greystone ES 

8/21/23 

11. Susan 
Johnson 

Professional .6 Math Teacher at 
Rustin HS/.4 Math 
Teacher at Stetson 
MS 

1.0 Math Teacher 
at East HS 

8/21/23 

12. Anne Korb Professional 1.0 Grade 5 
Teacher at 
Hillsdale ES 

1.0 Gifted 
Resource Teacher 
at Fern Hill ES 

8/21/23 

13. Erika Litofsky Professional 1.0 ELD Teacher 
at Hillsdale ES 

1.0 ELD Teacher 
at Henderson HS 

8/21/23 

14. Lisa Moncrief Professional .5 Special 
Education Teacher 
at Starkweather 
ES/.5 Special 
Education Teacher 
at Mary C. Howse 
ES 

1.0 Special 
Education Teacher 
at Starkweather 
ES 

8/21/23 

15. Alyssa Noone Professional 1.0 Kindergarten 
Teacher at 
Hillsdale ES 

1.0 TBD Grade 
Teacher at East 
Bradford ES 

8/21/23 

16. Carmen 
Pacheco 

Professional 1.0 ELD Teacher 
at Exton ES 

1.0 ELD Teacher 
at Hillsdale ES 

8/21/23 

17. Jessica 
Pezone 

Professional 1.0 English 
Teacher at Fugett 
MS 

1.0 TBD Grade 
Teacher at Mary 
C. Howse ES 

8/21/23 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.13 

 
 

Name Type From To 
Effective 

Date 

18. Erika Roebuck Professional .2 Health/Physical 
Education Teacher 
at Stetson MS/.8 
Health/Physical 
Education Teacher 
at Cyber Program 

1.0 
Health/Physical 
Education Teacher 
at Cyber Program 

8/21/23 

19. Chelsea 
Sammarone 

Professional .6 Cyber 
Program/.4 Social 
Studies Teacher at 
East HS 

1.0 Social Studies 
Teacher at East 
HS 

8/21/23 

20. Diana Vitello Professional 1.0 APT Teacher 
at Rustin HS 

1.0 APT 
Coordinator at 
Rustin HS 

8/21/23 

21. Carrie Winfield Professional 1.0 School 
Psychologist at 
Fern Hill ES 

1.0 School 
Psychologist at .8 
District (Non-
Public)/.2 
Westtown 
Thornbury ES 

8/21/23 

 
IV. Personnel Leave 

a. Sabbatical Leave 

 Name Position Effective Date Ending Date 

1. Kate Feryo Special Education 
Liaison at Spellman 
Education Center 

First Semester of 
2023-2024 school 
year 

Start of Second 
Semester of 2023-
2024 school year 

2. Lynn Van 
Lenten 

Orchestra Teacher 
at East Goshen 
ES/Hillsdale ES 

2023-2024 school 
year 

Start of 2024-2025 
school year 

 
b. Unpaid Leave - None 

 
V. Additional Information 

1. John Barton’s start date was 4/4/23. 

2. Sean Day’s start date was 4/17/23. 

3. Sarah Krause’s start date will be 5/25/23. 

4. The offer of employment of Spencer Lindsay has been rescinded. 

5. Susan Parke’s start date was 3/31/23. 

6. Lillian Rhode’s start date was 3/29/23. 

7. Christine Savage’s start date was 4/11/23. 

8. Devon Westwood’s start date was 4/11/23.  

9. In accordance with the PA State Auditor’s recommendation the following list of 
drivers, employed by our transportation contractors Krapf’s and on the Go Kids, 
require School Board approval.  The credentials and security clearances for each of 
these drivers has been verified to be in compliance with our transportation carrier 
contracts and have been vetted through the WCASD Transportation Office: 

 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.14 

 
KRAPF’S 

FIRST NAME LAST NAME DRIVER/AIDE 

Kyle Claps Driver 

Katie Morales Driver 

 
ON THE GO KIDS 

FIRST NAME LAST NAME DRIVER/AIDE 

John Bryfogle Driver 

Portia Graham Driver 

John Logue, Jr. Driver 

Laila  Madanat Aide 

Cynthia Urzillo Driver 

 
 
VI. Tutoring 

Last Name First Name Location Position 

Cavuto Jean District Homebound, 504 or 
Instruction in the 
Home Tutoring 

Lewis Patrick District Homebound, 504 or 
Instruction in the 
Home Tutoring 

Harker Constance ES Tutor 

Shopf Emily ES Tutor 

Boggs Leigh MS Tutor 

Dummeldinger Matthew MS Tutor 

Morrow Kelsey MS Tutor 

 
 
VII. Supplemental Contracts 

Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

’22-‘23 
Additions:       

Clark Kathleen HHS Spring 7 50 $2,208.00 
Asst. Girls Track 
Coach 

Clay Charles HHS Spring 1 50 $1,848.00 
Asst. Girls Track 
Coach 

Conte Madeline WTE Annual 1 30 $277.20 
Grade Level 
Leader: 1st 

        

’23-’24 Additions       

Berardi Henry EHS Fall 14 100 $5,172.00 
Asst. Boys 
Soccer Coach 

Boccio Leslie EHS Fall 8 100 $5,520.00 
Cheerleading 
Sponsor 

Breslin John EHS Fall 6 100 $4,860.00 
Head Girls Tennis 
Coach 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.15 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

Brown Alyssa EHS Fall 3 100 $3,780.00 
Asst. Volleyball 
Coach 

Chafetz Marc EHS Fall 12 100 $1,218.00 Fall Intramurals 

Chin-Sang Hazel 
Alyssa-
Kellan EHS Fall 3 40 $1,890.00 

Asst. Marching 
Band Director 

Cionci Nicholas EHS Fall 4 50 $2,677.50 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Clifford Morgan EHS Fall 3 100 $3,465.00 

Asst. 
Cheerleading 
Coach 

Costin Douglas EHS Fall 
15 
plus 100 $6,900.00 

Head Girls Cross 
Country Coach 

Dodds Charlie EHS Fall 8 100 $5,888.00 
Head Boys 
Soccer Coach 

Farrell Daniel EHS Fall 10 100 $6,477.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Flynn Erin EHS Fall 10 100 $5,715.00 
Head Volleyball 
Coach 

Garvin Kevan EHS Fall 2 100 $2,772.00 Game Manager 

Hart Elizabeth EHS Fall 2 100 $3,696.00 
Asst. Girls Soccer 
Coach 

Knight Ryan EHS Fall 8 100 $4,416.00 
Asst. Girls Soccer 
Coach 

Lamb Sean EHS Fall 7 100 $6,256.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Lanier Kareem EHS Fall 8 100 $5,520.00 
Head Boys Cross 
Country Coach 

Lindsay Charles EHS Fall 14 100 $1,293.00 Fall Intramurals 

Lobb James EHS Fall 2 34 $1,570.80 
Asst. Marching 
Band Director 

McVeigh Elizabeth EHS Fall 2 100 $3,696.00 
Asst. Girls Tennis 
Coach 

Miller Michael EHS Fall 8 100 $4,416.00 
Asst. Boys 
Soccer Coach 

Mueller Shannon EHS Fall 11 100 $6,496.00 
Head Girl Soccer 
Coach 

Orenshaw Michael EHS Fall 3 100 $3,780.00 Head Golf Coach 

Orlando Christopher EHS Fall 6 100 $7,452.00 
Marching Band 
Director 

Owens Dean EHS Fall 
15 
plus 100 $7,820.00 

Asst. Football 
Coach 

Phillips Gary EHS Fall 8 100 $6,256.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Pratt Lindsay EHS Fall 1 100 $3,696.00 
Asst. Field 
Hockey Coach 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.16 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

Rice Jessica EHS Fall 6 100 $4,860.00 
Head Field 
Hockey Coach 

Rudolph Paul EHS Fall 4 100 $3,780.00 
Asst. Boys 
Soccer Coach 

Scopelliti Bryan EHS Fall 9 100 $6,477.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Stephen Scott EHS Fall 10 100 $8,763.00 
Head Football 
Coach 

Swiggett Julian EHS Fall 10 100 $3,810.00 Fall Drama 

Weaver Elizabeth EHS Fall 1 29 $1,161.16 Color Guard 

Wiggins James EHS Fall 8 50 $3,128.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Young Jessica EHS Fall 8 100 $4,048.00 

Asst. 
Cheerleading 
Coach 

        

Arrison Matthew HHS Fall 2 100 $3,696.00 
Asst. Boys 
Soccer Coach 

Brice Robert HHS Fall 9 100 $8,763.00 
Head Football 
Coach 

Bryan Tim HHS Fall 14 100 $7,327.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Clay  Charles HHS Fall 10 100 $1,143.00 Fall Intramurals 

Costill Michael HHS Fall 2 50 $2,618.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Cummings Joel HHS Fall 8 100 $4,416.00 Head Golf Coach 

Ellis Dan HHS Fall 1 100 $5,236.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Johnson Bryan HHS Fall 10 50 $2,857.50 
Head Girls Cross 
Country Coach 

Keenan Michael HHS Fall 2 100 $5,236.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Kelly Kevin HHS Fall 
15 
plus 100 $6,900.00 

Head Boys Cross 
Country Coach 

LaGioia Lorenz HHS Fall 10 100 $4,572.00 
Asst. Girls Soccer 
Coach 

Lunardi John HHS Fall 14 50 $3,663.50 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Marabella Brandon HHS Fall 14 100 $5,172.00 
Asst. Boys 
Soccer Coach 

McCormick Thomas HHS Fall 3 100 $945.00 Fall Intramurals 

McDonald Rachael HHS Fall 2 100 $4,620.00 
Cheerleading 
Sponsor 

McGeehan Beverly HHS Fall 8 100 $4,416.00 
Asst. Girls Tennis 
Coach 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.17 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

McGusty, Jr. James HHS Fall 1 100 $3,696.00 
Asst. Girls Soccer 
Coach 

Neff Greta HHS Fall 8 100 $5,520.00 
Head Volleyball 
Coach 

Norris  Stephen HHS Fall 2 100 $4,928.00 
Head Girls 
Soccer Coach 

O'Neill Harry HHS Fall 8 100 $6,256.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Ronayne Jennifer HHS Fall 10 50 $2,857.50 
Head Girls Cross 
Country Coach 

Shollenberger Kyle HHS Fall 10 100 $5,715.00 
Asst. Marching 
Band Director 

Sok Peter HHS Fall 
15 
plus 100 $6,900.00 

Head Girls Tennis 
Coach 

Springer Ryan HHS Fall 2 100 $3,696.00 
Asst. Boys 
Soccer Coach 

VanEmburg Lucas HHS Fall 1 100 $5,236.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Whitehead Morgan HHS Fall 2 100 $3,388.00 

Asst. 
Cheerleading 
Coach 

Wilson Charles HHS Fall 5 100 $5,184.00 
Head Boys 
Soccer Coach 

Woywod Kendra HHS Fall 4 100 $7,245.00 
Marching Band 
Director 

Yost Loralynne HHS Fall 12 100 $4,872.00 
Asst. Girls Soccer 
Coach 

        

Ainsworth Ashley RHS Fall 4 100 $5,040.00 
Head Girls 
Soccer Coach 

Alvanitakis John RHS Fall 14 100 $7,327.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Arscott Joseph RHS Fall 
15 
plus 100 $5,520.00 

Asst. Boys 
Soccer Coach 

Brown Shaz RHS Fall 14 100 $7,327.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Byerly Scott RHS Fall 14 100 $4,310.00 Fall Drama 

Castineiras Emma RHS Fall 8 100 $4,784.00 Color Guard 

Castle Ryan RHS Fall 8 100 $5,888.00 
Head Boys 
Soccer Coach 

Daly Kelly RHS Fall 2 100 $3,696.00 
Asst. Field 
Hockey Coach 

D'Urbano Robert RHS Fall 10 100 $6,477.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Forjohn Vienna RHS Fall 8 100 $5,520.00 
Head Field 
Hockey Coach 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.18 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

Goebel Lauren RHS Fall 4 100 $3,780.00 
Asst. Girls Tennis 
Coach 

Harkins Brad RHS Fall 14 100 $1,293.00 Intramurals 

Hoffman Mitchell RHS Fall 12 100 $6,902.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Jones Matthew RHS Fall 8 100 $4,416.00 
Asst. Girls Soccer 
Coach 

Juelke Thomas RHS Fall 2 100 $3,696.00 
Asst. Boys 
Soccer Coach 

Marra Samantha RHS Fall 2 100 $3,388.00 

Asst. 
Cheerleading 
Coach 

McCreesh Kelly RHS Fall 2 100 $3,696.00 
Asst. Girls Soccer 
Coach 

McElroy William RHS Fall 8 100 $5,520.00 
Head Girls Tennis 
Coach 

Mohring Michael RHS Fall 14 100 $7,327.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Paris Joseph RHS Fall 
15 
plus 100 $5,520.00 Head Golf Coach 

Pyszczymuka Casey RHS Fall 3 100 $4,725.00 
Head Volleyball 
Coach 

Shain Samantha RHS Fall 2 100 $4,620.00 
Cheerleading 
Sponsor 

Shoremount Michael RHS Fall 
15 
plus 100 

$10,580.0
0 

Marching Band 
Director 

Smith  David RHS Fall 10 100 $5,715.00 
Head Boys Cross 
Country Coach 

St. Clair Michael RHS Fall 
15 
plus 100 

$10,580.0
0 

Head Football 
Coach 

Timko John RHS Fall 8 100 $6,256.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Vecchiolli Christina RHS Fall 10 100 $4,572.00 
Asst. Volleyball 
Coach 

Walsh Steve RHS Fall 8 100 $6,256.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

White Andrew RHS Fall 12 100 $6,090.00 
Head Girls Cross 
Country Coach 

Winfield Mark RHS Fall 
15 
plus 100 $5,520.00 

Asst. Girls Soccer 
Coach 

Ziegler Ian RHS Fall 2 100 $3,696.00 
Asst. Boys 
Soccer Coach 

        

Agudelo Christian FMS Fall 3 100 $2,205.00 
Asst. Girls Soccer 
Coach 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.19 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

DeLeo Kimberly FMS Fall 8 100 $3,312.00 
Head Girls 
Soccer Coach 

Giordano Benjamin FMS Fall 4 100 $2,835.00 
Head Boys 
Soccer Coach 

Nefos Frank FMS Fall 
15 
plus 100 $1,380.00 

6th Grade 
Intramurals 

Webb Corey FMS Fall 2 100 $2,772.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

        

Beatty Christopher PMS Fall 12 100 $3,654.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Brandon Lee PMS Fall 14 100 $4,741.00 
Head Football 
Coach 

Dumas Michael PMS Fall 12 100 $3,654.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Evans Sean PMS Fall 4 100 $2,835.00 
Head Girls 
Soccer Coach 

Kimberling Douglas PMS Fall 
15 
plus 100 $3,680.00 

Head Volleyball 
Coach 

Lockhart Nicole PMS Fall 4 100 $2,205.00 
Asst. Field 
Hockey Coach 

Lorback Denise PMS Fall 
15 
plus 100 $4,140.00 

Head Field 
Hockey Coach 

McDaid James PMS Fall 4 100 $2,205.00 
Asst. Volleyball 
Coach 

Perlmutter Ben PMS Fall 14 100 $3,879.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Phethean Theresa PMS Fall 10 100 $3,048.00 
Head Cross 
Country Coach 

Wildermuth Timothy PMS Fall 2 100 $2,772.00 
Head Boys 
Soccer Coach 

        

Ascareggi James SMS Fall 4 100 $2,205.00 
Asst. Volleyball 
Coach 

Fisher Shae SMS Fall 2 100 $2,464.00 
Head Volleyball 
Coach 

Listrani Erin SMS Fall 14 100 $3,879.00 
Head Girls 
Soccer Coach 

Loescher-
Velazquez David SMS Fall 10 100 $1,143.00 

6th Grade 
Intramurals 

Moritsch Melissa SMS Fall 3 100 $2,835.00 
Head Field 
Hockey Coach 

Newton Zaire SMS Fall 2 100 $2,772.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Nolen Jack SMS Fall 2 100 $2,464.00 
Head Cross 
Country Coach 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – April 24, 2023 - p.20 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

Patterson Emily SMS Fall 3 100 $2,205.00 
Asst. Field 
Hockey Coach 

Pester Gary SMS Fall 6 100 $2,916.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Rushton Amanda SMS Fall 6 100 $2,268.00 
Asst. Girls Soccer 
Coach 

Shells Brian SMS Fall 2 100 $2,772.00 
Asst. Football 
Coach 

Stephens Gabriela SMS Fall 2 100 $2,156.00 
Asst. Boys 
Soccer Coach 

Stolzer Peter SMS Fall 
15 
plus 100 $5,060.00 

Head Football 
Coach 

        

‘22-‘23 Removals:       

Myers Vincent RHS Spring 1 50 $1,848.00 
Asst. Boys 
Lacrosse Coach 

        

’22-’23 Adjustments:       

Cugini Charles RHS Spring 2 100 $3,696.00 
Asst. Boys 
Lacrosse Coach 

Ramagano John  RHS Spring 1 50 $1,848.00 
Asst. Girls Track 
Coach 

Wein Nancy WTE Annual 2 70 $646.80 
Grade Level 
Leader: 1st 

 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 
Monday, April 24, 2023           7:00 PM Spellman Education Center 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
I recommend the Board approve the following consent agenda items: 

IX.  School Board Reports 
 

Education 
1. Approval to terminate the following Student Activity Account(s): 

•  East High School – Class of 2022 
2. Approval to establish the following Student Activity Account(s): 

• Peirce Middle School – TogetHER Club 
• Stetson Middle School – Stetson GSA 

3. Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 
• Rustin High School, Speech and Debate Team – Bloomsburg University 03/17/2023 

– 03/18/2023 
• Rustin High School, 10-12 Choral Music – Pocono Manor, PA 04/19/2023 – 

04/22/2023 
• Rustin High School, Science Olympiad – Penn State Altoona, PA 04/21/2023 – 

04/22/2023 
• Stetson Middle School, Science Olympiad – Penn State Altoona, PA 04/21/2023 – 

04/22/2023 
• Fugett Middle School, Science Olympiad – Penn State Altoona, PA 04/21/2023 – 

04/22/2023 
• Henderson High School, DECA 12 Grade – Orlando, Fl 04/22/2023 – 04/26/2023 
• Rustin High School, DECA 9 - 12 Grade – Orlando, Fl 04/22/023 – 04/27/2023 
• East High School, DECA 9 -12 – Orlando, Fl 04/22/2023 – 04/26/2023 
• East High School, Academic Team – Harrisburg, PA 04/27/2023 – 04/28/2023 
• Henderson High School, Spanish 9 – 11 Grade – Ecuador 06/19/2023 – 06/28/2024 

4. Approval of Final Revised 2022-2023 School Calendar 
 

Pupil Services  
1. Approval of one (1) Special Education Settlement Agreement 
2. Approval of Sweet, Stevens, Katz, & Williams, LLC Legal Services Consultation 

Agreement  
 
Personnel - none 
 
Property & Finance  
1. Approval of 2023-24 CCIU Core Budget 
2. Approval of 2023-24 Occupational Education Budget 
3. Approval to Authorize the Removal of Tax Liens on Uncollectable Parcels 
4. Approval of Resolution to Appoint Authorized Signers 
5. Approval of BoardDocs Management System 
6. Approval of 2022-23 Capital Reserve Project Award 
7. Approval of 2023-24 Capital Reserve Project Awards 
8. Approval of 2023-24 Capital Fund Project Award 

 



 
CONSENT AGENDA  Page 2 April 24, 2023 

Policy Review Committee 
1. Approval of Revised Policy 251: Students Experiencing Homelessness, Foster Care or 

other Educational Instability, Second Reading 
2. Approval of Revised Policy 830 Electronic Data Storage (formerly known as Breach of 

Computerized Personal Information), Second Reading 
3. Approval of Revised Policy 003: Functions, Second Reading 
4. Approval of Revised Policy 004: Membership, Second Reading 
5. Approval of Revised Policy 005: Organization, Second Reading 
6. Approval of New Administrative Guideline: 005AG1 Board Organization Guidelines, 

Second Reading 
7. Approval of Revised Policy 113.1: Discipline of Students with Disabilities, First Reading 
8. Approval of Revised Policy 216: Student Records, First Reading 
9. Approval of Revised Policy 218: Student Discipline, First Reading 
10. Approval of New Administrative Guideline 830AG1: Electronic Data Storage Guidelines, 

First Reading 
11. Approval of Revised Policy 006.3: Broadcasting Board Meetings, First Reading 
12. Approval of Revised Policy 009: Policy Development, First Reading 

 
 
X. Other Business 
1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 

Summary Schedule for the Period of March 1, 2023 to March 31, 2023 
2. Approval of the March 31, 2023 Financial Report 

 
 
 

Responsible Staff: Dr. Reynolds 
 
Background 

  

These action items are either routine or high consensus items and may not require 
discussion by the Board. If any Board member wishes to discuss any action item, the Board 
President will move it from the consent agenda to its appropriate place on the regular 
agenda. 

 
 
 
 



 
 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

Education Committee 
 April 24, 2023 

Action Items 
 

 
 
Approval to terminate the following Student Activity Account(s): 

• East High School – Class of 2022 
 
Approval is requested to terminate the following Student Activity Account(s): 

• East High School – Class of 2022 

I so move. 

 
Approval to establish the following Student Activity Account(s): 

• Peirce Middle School – TogetHER Club 
• Stetson Middle School – Stetson GSA 

 
Approval is requested to establish the following Student Activity Account(s): 

• Peirce Middle School – TogetHER Club 
• Stetson Middle School – Stetson GSA 

 
I so move. 

 
Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 

• Rustin High School, Speech and Debate Team – Bloomsburg University 
03/17/2023 – 03/18/2023  

• Rustin High School, 10-12 Choral Music – Pocono Manor, PA 04/19/2023 – 
04/22/2023 

• Rustin High School, Science Olympiad – Penn State Altoona, PA 04/21/2023 – 
04/22/2023  

• Stetson Middle School, Science Olympiad – Penn State Altoona, PA 04/21/2023 – 
04/22/2023  

• Fugett Middle School, Science Olympiad – Penn State Altoona, PA 04/21/2023 – 
04/22/2023 

• Henderson High School, DECA 12 Grade – Orlando, Fl 04/22/2023 – 04/26/2023 
• Rustin High School, DECA 9 - 12 Grade – Orlando, Fl 04/22/023 – 04/27/2023  
• East High School, DECA 9 -12 – Orlando, Fl 04/22/2023 – 04/26/2023 
• East High School, Academic Team – Harrisburg, PA 04/27/2023 – 04/28/2023 
• Henderson High School, Spanish 9 – 11 Grade – Ecuador 06/19/2023 – 

06/28/2024 

 



 
 
Education Committee -2- April 24, 2023 

 
 
 
Approval is requested of the following Study/Excursion trip(s):  

• Rustin High School, Speech and Debate Team – Bloomsburg University 03/17/2023 – 03/18/2023  
• Rustin High School, 10-12 Choral Music – Pocono Manor, PA 04/19/2023 – 04/22/2023 
• Rustin High School, Science Olympiad – Penn State Altoona, PA 04/21/2023 – 04/22/2023  
• Stetson Middle School, Science Olympiad – Penn State Altoona, PA 04/21/2023 – 04/22/2023  
• Fugett Middle School, Science Olympiad – Penn State Altoona, PA 04/21/2023 – 04/22/2023 
• Henderson High School, DECA 12 Grade – Orlando, Fl 04/22/2023 – 04/26/2023 
• Rustin High School, DECA 9 - 12 Grade – Orlando, Fl 04/22/023 – 04/27/2023  
• East High School, DECA 9 -12 – Orlando, Fl 04/22/2023 – 04/26/2023 
• East High School, Academic Team – Harrisburg, PA 04/27/2023 – 04/28/2023 
• Henderson High School, Spanish 9 – 11 Grade – Ecuador 06/19/2023 – 06/28/2024 

 
I so move. 
 
 

Approval of Final Revised 2022-2023 School Calendar  
 
Approval is requested of Final Revised 2022-2023 School Calendar  
 
I so move. 



 

 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Education Committee  

 
Tuesday, April 11, 2023 

Spellman Education Center Board Room 
Start: 7:08 pm – Finish: 8:16 pm  

 
 
Attending Committee Members:  

 ☒ Daryl Durnell (chair) ☒ Joyce Chester  ☒ Laura Detre  ☒ Alex Christy 

 
Other Board Members: 

  ☒ Gary Bevilacqua ☒ Karen Fleming ☐ Karen Herrmann ☒ Sue Tiernan ☐ Stacey Whomsley 

 
Administration: 

☒ Cheryl Newtown Woods ☒  Kalia Reynolds ☒ Michael Wagman    ☒  Melissa Kleiman 

☒  Sara Missett ☐  Kara Bailey    ☒  Rebecca Eberly  ☒  Ian Kerr  ☒  Dina Dormer 

☒  Kristen Barnello 

 
Public Comment: 

Name Agenda item 

Judi DiFonzo Calendar 

 
Items on Agenda: 

• Approval of the March Education Committee Meeting Minutes 

• Approval of Final Revised 2022-2023 School Calendar 

• Curriculum Updates – Mastery Learning Exploration 

• Curriculum Updates – STEEL Standards/Design Thinking 

• Summer Programming 
 
Education Committee Actions/Outcomes to be placed on April 27 2023 Board Agenda for 
Approval: 

Agenda Item Vote / Time Stamp 

Approval of the March Education Committee Meeting Minutes 
3-0 

Approval of Final Revised 2022-2023 School Calendar 4-0 

 
 































 2022-23 WCASD School Board Calendar - EOY for approval School Board 

approved 2.28.2022

S M T W R F S S M T W R F S S M T W R F S S M T W R F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 1 2 3 4 5

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30

30 31

S M T W R F S S M T W R F S S M T W R F S S M T W R F S

1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31 26 27 28 26 27 28 29 30 31

Teacher Inservice, no school for students

S M T W R F S S M T W R F S S M T W R F S Half-Day, PM Teacher Inservice

1 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 Schools Closed

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 First Day of School

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 End of Marking Period

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 End of Trimesters

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 Parent Conferences

30 Last Day of School for

 Students & Teachers

185 Days for Students (182)

 194 Days for Teachers (191)

 3 Snow Days Built-In

August 2022 September 2022 October 2022 November 2022

Student 3   Teacher 7 Student 20/23   Teacher 21/28 Student 19/42   Teacher 19/47 Student 18/60   Teacher 20/67

December 2022 January 2023 February 2023 March 2023

Student 16/76   Teacher 16/83 Student 20/96   Teacher 20/103 Student 19/115   Teacher 19/122 Student 22/137   Teacher 23/145

April 2023 May 2023 June 2023

Student 16/153 Teacher 16/161 Student 21/174 Teacher 22/183 Student 11/185   Teacher 11/194



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Pupil Services Committee 

April 24, 2023 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 
Approval of one (1) Special Education Settlement Agreement 
Approval is requested of one (1) Special Education Settlement Agreement. 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval of Sweet, Stevens, Katz & Williams LLP Annual Legal Services 
Consultation Agreement 
Approval is requested of the Sweet, Stevens, Katz & Williams LLP Annual Legal 
Services Consultation Agreement for the 2023-2024 school year. 
 
I so move. 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Pupil Services Committee  

April 11, 2023 
Spellman Education Center Board Room A 

Start: 6:30 pm – Finish:  pm  

Attending Committee Members: 

☒ Joyce Chester  ☒ Daryl Durnell  ☒ Laura Detre  ☒ Alex Christy

Other Board Members: 

☒ Gary Bevilacqua ☒ Karen Fleming ☐ Karen Herrmann ☒ Sue Tiernan ☐ Stacey Whomsley

Administration: 

☒ Kalia Reynolds  ☐ Wayne Birster    ☒  Melissa Kleiman

☒ Sara Missett  ☐  John Scully   ☐  Jeff Ulmer  ☒  Cheryl Newton-Woods

Public Comment:  none

Items on Agenda: 

• Approval of February 13, 2023 Pupil Services Committee Meeting Minutes

• Approval of March 13, 2023 Pupil Services Committee Meeting Minutes

• Approval of Sweet, Stevens, Katz and Williams contract renewal

• Presentation on paraprofessional support in the district by Casey Wyatt and Melissa Kleiman

Pupil Services Committee Actions/Outcomes to be placed on the April 24, 2023 Board 
Agenda for approval: 

Agenda Item Vote 

Approval of February 13, 2023 Pupil Services Committee Meeting Minutes 
3-0

Approval of March 13, 2023 Pupil Services Committee Meeting Minutes 
3-0

Approval of Sweet, Stevens, Katz and Williams contract renewal 
4-0

Board Consent Agenda Items: None 

Items to be discussed at a later date: None 



 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Property & Finance Committee 
April 24, 2023 – ACTION ITEMS 

 
 

 

 

Approval of 2023-24 CCIU Core Budget 
 
Approval is requested for the 2023-24 Chester County Intermediate Unit Core Services 
Budget in the amount of $34,720,570. 
 
I so move. 
 
Approval of 2023-24 Occupational Education Budget 
 
Approval is requested for the 2023-24 Chester County Intermediate Unit Occupational 
Education Budget in the amount of $31,574,393. 
 
I so move. 
 
Approval to Authorize the Removal of Tax Liens on Uncollectable Parcels 
 
Approval is requested to authorize the removal of tax liens in the amount of $12,029.61 
on parcels 51-7-123.8, 51-7-123.19, 51-7-123.20, and 51-7Q-350.  
 
I so move. 
 
Approval of Resolution to Appoint Authorized Signers 
 
Approval is requested to authorize John Scully and Justin Matys to act on behalf of the 
West Chester Area School District to execute documents associated with the dissolution 
of the Mary A. Croll Trust. 
 
I so move. 
 
Approval of BoardDocs Management System 
 
Approval is requested for the BoardDocs Pro Plus Management System with a recurring 
annual cost of $18,000. 
 
I so move. 
 
 
 
 

-continued on Page 2- 



 

Property & Finance Committee 
ACTION ITEMS 4/24/23 
Page 2 
 
Approval of 2022-23 Capital Reserve Project Award 
 
Approval is requested for the following 2022-23 Capital Reserve Project Award: 

Project # Description Vendor Project Budget Award Amount  

G-140  

PMS Repave 
Main & Rear 
Driveways  

DiRocco 
Brothers 
Inc.   $ 265,000.00   $ 249,940.50  

I so move. 
 

Approval of 2023-24 Capital Reserve Project Awards 
 
Approval is requested for the following 2023-24 Capital Reserve Project Awards: 

Project # Description Vendor Project Budget Award Amount  

G-147 

Exterior Door 
Security 
(District-wide)  

A.G. Mauro 
Company   $ 125,000.00   $   29,840.00  

G-148 

EHS Seal 
Coating and Re-
lining Parking 
Lots  

Unitex 
Asphalt 
Services  $ 115,000.00   $ 105,205.00  

G-152 
Rustin Interior 
Painting 

Van Horn 
Painting  $   55,000.00   $   61,000.00  

G-155 
Henderson Clock 
tower Controls 

National 
Time & 
Signal  $   15,000.00   $   10,294.80  

G-156 
Henderson 
Interior Painting  

Castle 
Painting  $ 130,000.00   $   96,800.00  

I so move. 
 
Approval of 2023-24 Capital Fund Project Award 
 
Approval is requested for the following 2023-24 Capital Fund Project Award: 

Project # Description Vendor Project Budget Award Amount  

C-072  

Paving 
Replacement 
SMS 

DiRocco 
Brothers, 
Inc.   $ 275,129.00   $ 203,013.00  

I so move. 
 

-continued on Page 3- 



Property & Finance Committee 
ACTION ITEMS 4/24/23 
Page 3 
 
 
 
Approval of Resolution to Adopt Proposed Final Budget for the 2023-24 Fiscal 
Year 
 
Approval is requested for the Resolution to adopt the proposed final budget for fiscal 
year 2023-24. 
 
I so move. 
 



Committee Meeting Minutes 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

April 17, 2023 – Property & Finance Committee 
 
Attending Committee Members:  Director Bevilacqua-Chair, Director Fleming, Director 
Herrmann, Director Whomsley 
Other Board Members:  Director Chester, Director Detre, Director Durnell, Director 
Christy, Director Tiernan  
Administration:  Mr. John Scully, Dr. Kalia Reynolds, Mr. Wayne Birster, Mr. Justin 
Matys, Mr. Michael Wagman 
Also Present:  Members of the public 
 
Action or outcomes from the meeting:  (Unless noted, all votes were 4-0.) 
Public Comment was made by the following residents on agenda items as indicated: 
None  
The committee approved the March 20, 2023 Property & Finance Committee 
Minutes. 

Mr. 
Bevilacqua 

The 2023-24 Proposed Final Budget was presented by Mr. Scully and 
included a comparison of revenues & expenses for 2022-23 and 2023-24. 
The 2023-24 proposed budget increased from the 2022-23 budget by $5.16 
million (1.7%). The largest increases were in staffing and employee benefits 
expenses of $6.9 million, new staff of $1.9 million, retirement costs of 
$841,000, professional services of $340,000, utilities and leases of 
$510,000, transportation services of $701,000, heating fuel/maintenance/ 
and office supplies of $203,000, and instructional/book supplies of 
$174,000. The increases were offset by decreases in professional services, 
tuitions, debt service and transfer to Capital Funds totaling $6.41 million. 
The 2023-24 proposed budget revenues increased by $7.055 million (2.7%) 
over the 2022-23 budget revenues. Mr. Scully reviewed additional schedules 
which included a 10-year history of mandated expenditures and state 
funding, comparison data from prior years for benefits, retirement expense, 
and millage change. This is an informational item and no Board action is 
required. 

Mr. Scully 

Mr. Scully presented the Resolution to adopt the Proposed Final 2023-24 
Budget in accordance with the Act 1 timeline.  Mr. Scully advised the 
committee that changes can be made to the proposed final budget up until 
the time of final budget approval in May.  The committee recommended 
approval of the Resolution to Adopt the 2023-24 Proposed Final Budget. 

Mr. Scully 

Mr. Birster reviewed with the committee a 2022-23 capital reserve project 
to be awarded with the committee’s approval: 

Project # Description Vendor Project 
Budget 

Award 
Amount  

G-140  

Repave Main 
and Rear 
Driveways PMS 

DiRocco 
Brothers 
Inc.   $ 265,000.00   $ 249,940.50  

The committee recommended approval of the 2022-23 capital reserve 
project. 

Mr. Birster 

Mr. Birster reviewed with the committee the 2023-24 capital reserve 
projects to be awarded with the committee’s approval: Mr. Birster 



Project # Description Vendor Project 
Budget 

Award 
Amount  

G-147 

Exterior Door 
Security 
(District-
wide)  

A.G. Mauro 
Company   $ 125,000.00   $   29,840.00  

G-148 

EHS Seal 
Coating and 
Re-lining 
Parking Lots  

Unitex 
Asphalt 
Services  $ 115,000.00   $ 105,205.00  

G-152 

Rustin 
Interior 
Painting 

Van Horn 
Painting  $   55,000.00   $   61,000.00  

G-155 

Henderson 
Clock tower 
Controls 

National 
Time & 
Signal  $   15,000.00   $   10,294.80  

G-156 

Henderson 
Interior 
Painting  

Castle 
Painting  $ 130,000.00   $   96,800.00  

The committee recommended approval of the 2023-24 capital reserve 
projects. 
Mr. Birster reviewed with the committee a 2023-24 capital fund project to 
be awarded with the committee’s approval: 

Project # Description Vendor Project 
Budget 

Award 
Amount  

C-072  

Paving 
Replacement 
SMS 

DiRocco 
Brothers, 

Inc.   $ 275,129.00   $ 203,013.00  
The committee recommended approval of the 2023-24 capital fund project. 

Mr. Birster 

Mr. Wagman presented the committee with information about BoardDocs 
Pro Plus Document Management System which provides the ability to 
create, manage and publish committee meeting and regular Board meeting 
agendas and minutes.  The product will be accessible by all stakeholders.  
The recurring annual fee is $18,000. The committee recommended approval 
of BoardDocs Pro Plus Document Management System. 

Mr. 
Wagman 

Items to be placed on board agenda April 24, 2023: 
• Approval of Resolution to Adopt the Proposed Final 2023-24 Budget 
• Approval of 2022-23 Capital Reserve Project Award 
• Approval of 2023-24 Capital Reserve Project Awards 
• Approval of 2023-24 Capital Fund Project Award 
• Approval of BoardDocs Pro Plus Document Management System 
 
MEMO items for board agenda April 24, 2023: 
• Approval of 2023-24 CCIU Core Budget 
• Approval of 2023-24 CCIU Occupational Education Budget 
• Approval to Authorize the Removal of Tax Liens on Uncollectable Parcels 
• Approval of Resolution to Appoint Authorized Signers 
 
Items to discuss at a later date: Cost analysis for Library naming, Greystone ES 
  



  
Next Meeting Date:   Monday, May 15, 2023 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

Resolution 
 

WHEREAS, the Will of Mary A. Croll provided for the funding and terms of a 
residuary educational trust for the purpose of awarding scholarships for certain 
individuals to attend college (“Trust”);  and 

 
WHEREAS, the West Chester Area School District (“School District”) is the 

beneficiary of this Trust in that it receives distribution from the Trust for award of 
scholarships to students; and   

 
WHEREAS, the current trustee for the Trust is Wells Fargo Bank, National 

Association (“Trustee”);  
 

WHEREAS, the Trustee believes the termination of the Trust is appropriate, 
with the assets of the terminated Trust distributed for the School District for the 
continuation of the scholarship program; and 

 
WHEREAS, any such termination of the Trust requires approval of the court; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, at the December 19, 2022 public board meeting, the School 

District’s Board of School Directors (“Board”) consented and joined the Petition to 
Terminate the Trust and accept, hold and utilize the funds for scholarship purposes 
consistent with the direction of the court; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Trustee requires a resolution from the School District setting 

forth who is authorized to sign documents associated with the dissolution of the 
Trust and the distribution of its proceeds on behalf of the School District. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that John Scully, Director of 
Business Affairs, and Justin Matys, Assistant Director of Business Affairs, are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the School District to execute documents associated 
with the dissolution of the Trust and the distribution of its proceeds. 

 
 
ENACTED AND RESOLVED, this ___ day ____________, 2023. 
 

ATTEST:     WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL BOARD 
 
 
_________________________ By:______________________________ 
Secretary          President 



 
 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

Resolution to Adopt Proposed Final Budget for 2023-2024 Fiscal Year 
 

Whereas, School Code section 687, 24 P.S. § 6-687, requires the 
School Board to adopt a Proposed Final Budget for the 2023-2024 fiscal year 
no later than May 31, 2023; and 

 
Whereas, School Code section 687 requires the School Board to adopt 

a Final Budget for the 2023-24 fiscal year no later than June 30, 2023; and 
 

Whereas, the 2023-24 Proposed Final Budget is required to be 
prepared on Pennsylvania Department of Education (PDE) form 2028; and 
 

Whereas, School Code section 687 requires that the Proposed Final 
Budget be made available for public inspection at least twenty (20) days 
prior to adoption of the Final Budget; and  

 
Whereas, School Code section 687 requires ten (10) days public 

notice prior to the adoption of the Final Budget; and  
 
Now Therefore be it RESOLVED, this 24TH day of April 2023 by the 

West Chester Area School District School Board, that: 
 
1. The Proposed Final Budget of the School District for the 

2023-2024 fiscal year on form PDE 2028 is attached to this 
Resolution and shall be adopted as the Proposed Final 
Budget of the School District for the 2023-2024 fiscal year. 

 
2. The Proposed Final Budget for the 2023-2024 fiscal year 

shall be made available for public inspection on May 4, 
2023 at the school district offices, 782 Springdale Drive, 
Exton, PA  19341. 

 
3. At least ten (10) days before the date scheduled for 

adoption of the Final Budget, the Secretary shall advertise 
public Notice of the proposed date, time and place for the 
meeting for the adoption of the Final Budget.   

 
4. The public Notice shall be advertised once in a newspaper 

of general circulation and shall be posted conspicuously at 
the School District offices.  



 
5. The Administration and School Board will continue to 

review budget components, and the Proposed Final Budget 
may be revised prior to adoption as the Final Budget for 
the 2023-2024 fiscal year.   

 
6. School District officials are directed to take all action 

necessary or appropriate to carry out the intent of this 
Resolution; including but not limited to making the 
required certification to PDE. 

 
ATTEST:     WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL BOARD 
 
 
__________________________    By: ________________________ 
Linda P. Cherashore, Secretary       Sue Tiernan, President 
   



 
 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

Policy Review Committee 
 April 24, 2023 

Action Items 
 

 
 

Approval of Revised Policy 251: Students Experiencing Homelessness, 
Foster Care or other Educational Instability, Second Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy 251: Students Experiencing Homelessness, Foster 
Care or other Educational Instability, Second Reading 
 
I so move. 

 
Approval of Revised Policy 830 Electronic Data Storage (formerly known as 
Breach of Computerized Personal Information), Second Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy 830 Electronic Data Storage (formerly known as 
Breach of Computerized Personal Information), Second Reading 
 
I so move. 
 
 

Approval of Revised Approval of Revised Policy 003: Functions, Second 
Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy Approval of Revised Policy 003: Functions, Second 
Reading 
 
I so move. 
 
 

Approval of Revised Policy 004: Membership, Second Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy 004: Membership, Second Reading 
 
I so move. 
 
 

Approval of Revised Policy 005: Organization, Second Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy 005: Organization, Second Reading 
 
I so move. 
 
 

Approval of New Administrative Guideline: 005AG1 Board Organization 
Guidelines, Second Reading  
Approval is requested of New Administrative Guideline: 005AG1 Board Organization 
Guidelines, Second Reading  
 
I so move. 



 
 
Policy Review Committee -2- April 24, 2023 

 
 
 

 
Approval of Revised Policy 113.1 Discipline of Students with Disabilities, 
First Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy 113.1 Discipline of Students with Disabilities, First 
Reading 
 
I so move. 

 
 
Approval of Revised Policy 216: Student Records, First Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy 216: Student Records, First Reading. 
 
I so move. 

 
 
Approval of Revised Policy 218: Student Discipline, First Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy 218: Student Discipline, First Reading. 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval of New Administrative Guideline 830AG1: Electronic Data Storage 
Guidelines, First Reading 
Approval is requested of New Administrative Guideline 830AG1: Electronic Data Storage 
Guidelines, First Reading. 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval of Revised Policy 006.3: Broadcasting Board Meetings, First 
Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy 006.3: Broadcasting Board Meetings, First Reading. 

 
I so move. 

 
 
Approval of Revised Policy 009: Policy Development, First Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy 009 Policy Development, First Reading. 

 
I so move. 
 



 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Policy Review Committee  
 

Policy Review Committee Meeting Minutes 

April 17, 2023 

Spellman Education Center Board Room 

Start:     5:45 pm – Finish:  6:33 pm  

 

Attending Committee Members:  
 

☒ Karen Fleming (chair) ☒ Gary Bevilacqua ☒ Laura Detre   ☒ Stacey Whomsley 

 
Other Board Members: 

☒ Joyce Chester  ☒  Alex Christy ☒ Daryl Durnell ☒ Karen Herrmann ☒ Sue Tiernan  

 
Administration: 

☒  Kalia Reynolds ☒ Wayne Birster ☒  Melissa Kleiman ☐ Una Martin ☒  Sara Missett 

☒Cheryl Newton-Woods   ☒  John Scully    ☐  Jeff Ulmer  ☒  Michael Wagman 

 

Public Comment:  

Name Agenda Item 

Bob Rafetto Policy 016 

Judi DiFonzo Policy 113.2 

 

Items on Agenda 

• Approval of March 20, 2023 Minutes 

• Review and Approval of Policy 113.1 Discipline of Students with Disabilities  

• Review and Approval of Revised Policy 113.2: Behavior Intervention 

• Review and Approval of Revised Policy 216: Student Records 

• Review and Approval of Revised Policy 218: Student Discipline 

• Policy 237: Use of Personal and District Technology Devices 

• Review and Approval of New Administrative Guideline 830AG1: Electronic Data 
Storage Guidelines 

• Review and Approval of Revised Policy 006: Meetings 

• Review and Approval of Revised Policy 006.1: Attendance at Meetings Via 
Electronic Communications 

• Review and Approval of Revised Policy 006.2 Rules of Order 

• Review and Approval of Revised Policy 006.3: Broadcasting Board Meetings 

• Policy 007: Policy Manual Access 

• Review and Approval of Revised Policy 009: Policy Development 

• Review and Approval of Revised Policy 016: Electronic Communications 
 
 

Policy Review Committee Actions/Outcomes 



Policy Review Committee Minutes -2- April 17, 2023 

 
 
 

Agenda Item Vote 

Approval of March 20, 2023 Minutes 4-0 

Approval of Policy 113.1 Discipline of Students with Disabilities 4-0 

Approval of Revised Policy 113.2: Behavior Intervention: returned to 

committee for further review 

No vote 

Approval of Revised Policy 216: Student Records 4-0 

Approval of Revised Policy 218: Student Discipline 4-0 

Approval of New Administrative Guideline 830AG1: Electronic Data Storage 

Guidelines 

4-0 

Approval of 006: Meetings: returned to committee for further review No vote 

Approval of Revised Policy 006.1: Attendance at Meetings Via Electronic 

Communications: returned to committee for further review 

No vote 

Approval of Revised Policy 006.2 Rules of Order: returned to committee for 

further review 

No vote 

Approval of Revised Policy 006.3: Broadcasting Board Meetings 4-0 

Approval of Revised Policy 009: Policy Development 4-0 

Approval of Revised Policy 016: Electronic Communications: returned to 

committee for further review 

No vote 

 

Next Meeting: Monday, May 15, 2023 

 

April Board Consent Agenda items: 

• Revised Policy 251: Students Experiencing Homelessness, Foster Care or 
other Educational Instability, Second Reading  

• Revised Policy 830 Electronic Data Storage (formerly known as Breach of 
Computerized Personal Information), Second Reading 

• Revised Approval of Revised Policy 003: Functions, Second Reading 

• Revised Policy 004: Membership, Second Reading 

• Revised Policy 005: Organization, Second Reading 

• New Administrative Guideline: 005AG1 Board Organization Guidelines, 
Second Reading  

 



3/24/23, 2:21 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/11

Book Policy Manual

Section 200 Pupils

Title Students Experiencing Homelessness, Foster Care and Other Educational Instability

Code 251

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised February 27, 2023

Last Reviewed September 28, 2015

Prior Revised Dates 4/23/2018

Purpose

The Board recognizes the challenges encountered by students experiencing homelessness, foster care, and
other educational instability. The Board is committed to
facilitating immediate enrollment, addressing barriers to attendance, education, and graduation; and
providing supports in compliance with federal and state law, regulations and Board policy, for such students.
[1][2][3][4][5][6][7][8]
 
Authority

The Board directs the district to collaborate with school staff, other school districts, local agencies and other
entities in supporting the needs of students experiencing educational instability. 

Students experiencing educational instability shall have equal access to the same educational
programs, activities and services provided to other district students. [1][2][3][4][5][6][7]

The Board authorizes the Superintendent to waive specific requirements in Board policies, procedures, and
administrative regulations to the extent that they create barriers for the enrollment and attendance of
students experiencing educational instability. Such waivers may include, but are not limited to,
requirements regarding:[1][2][3][4][5][6][7]
 

1. Dress code.[9]

2. Transportation.[10]

3. School-sponsored or extracurricular activities for which students meet placement and qualification
requirements, including, but not limited to, clubs, athletics, performing arts, class trips, social events,
career and technical education, internships and specialized classes.[11][12][13][14][15][16][17]  

4. Fees related to school-sponsored or extracurricular activity participation fees, and other fees including,
but not limited to, school identification (badges, cards, etc.), uniforms, materials, lost or damaged
items, athletic physical exams, parking or driving, food services, library, locker or padlock rental or

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter11/s11.18.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=6&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=31&subsctn=1
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6311
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6312
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-119/subchapter-VI/part-B
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/675
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter11/s11.18.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=6&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=31&subsctn=1
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6311
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6312
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-119/subchapter-VI/part-B
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter11/s11.18.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=6&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=31&subsctn=1
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6311
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6312
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-119/subchapter-VI/part-B


3/24/23, 2:21 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/11

replacement, summer school or credit recovery, technology and graduation regalia.[9][13][14][15]
[18][19][20][21][22]

5. Graduation.[19]

6. Registration deadlines.
It is the policy of the Board that no student shall be discriminated against, segregated or stigmatized based
on their status as a student experiencing educational instability.

Definitions
 
Student Experiencing Educational Instability means a student who has experienced one (1) or more
changes in school enrollment during a single school year as a result of any of the following:[4]

1. Homelessness as defined under the law and as determined by the district.[1][3][7]

2. An adjudication of:[23][24]
 

a. Dependency relating to child protective services and juvenile matters;

b. Delinquency, if disclosed by the student or the student’s parent/guardian; or

c. As part of court-ordered services under a voluntary placement or custody agreement.

A student experiencing foster care may also qualify as a student experiencing educational instability as
defined above, if such circumstances apply.[25]

Enroll or Enrollment means attending classes and participating fully in school activities.[26]

Additional costs means the difference between what the district spends to transport a resident student to
the student’s assigned school and the cost to transport a child in foster care to the child’s school of origin.

Foster care means twenty-four (24) hour substitute care for children placed away from their parents or
guardians and for whom the child welfare agency has placement and care responsibility. This includes, but is
not limited to, placements in foster family homes, foster homes of relatives, group homes, emergency
shelters, residential facilities, child care institutions and pre-adoptive homes. A child is in foster care in
accordance with this definition regardless of whether the foster care facility is licensed and payments are
made by the state, tribal or local agency for the care of the child, whether adoption subsidy payments are
being made prior to the finalization of an adoption or whether there is federal matching of any payments
that are made.[25]
 
Homeless children and youth means individuals who lack a fixed, regular and adequate nighttime
residence, and includes:[26]
 

1. Children and youths who are:

a. Sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship or a similar reason;

b. Living in motels, hotels, trailer parks or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative adequate
accommodations;

c. Living in emergency, transitional or domestic violence shelters; or

d. Abandoned in hospitals;
 

2. Children and youths who have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not
designed for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings;
 

https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=31&subsctn=1
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter11/s11.18.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=6&subsctn=0
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-119/subchapter-VI/part-B
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=23&div=0&chpt=63
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=42&div=0&chpt=63
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/45/1355.20#
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11434a
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/45/1355.20#
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11434a


3/24/23, 2:21 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/11

3. Children and youths who are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard
housing, bus or train stations, or similar settings;
 

4. Migratory children who qualify as homeless because they are living in circumstances described
above; and,
 

5. School-aged parents living in houses for school-aged parents if they have no other available living
accommodations.

Unaccompanied youth means a homeless child or youth not in the physical custody of a parent or
guardian. This includes youth who have run away from home; been abandoned or forced out of home by a
parent, guardian or other caretaker; or separated from a parent or guardian for any other reason.[26]

School of origin is the school in which the student experiencing educational instability was last enrolled.
 

The school of origin for a homeless child or youth - the last school in which the homeless child or
youth was enrolled when permanently housed or the school in which the homeless child or youth was
last enrolled, including preschool.[27]

The school of origin for a child in foster care - the school in which a child is enrolled at the time of
placement in foster care. If a child’s foster care placement changes, the school of origin is the school
the child is attending immediately prior to each change in placement.[8]

When the homeless child or youth, or child in foster care, completes the final grade level served by the
school of origin, the school of origin shall become the designated receiving school at the next grade
level for all feeder schools.

Delegation of Responsibility
 
The Board designates the Superintendent or designee to serve as the district's point of contact for students
experiencing educational instability.[4][5][27]
 
The name and contact information of the district’s point of contact shall be included in the student’s
education records and provided to the student’s education decision maker.[4]

The district's point of contact  shall ensure outreach and coordination with the following, as appropriate to
each individual student's needs:[4][5][27]
 

1. Local children and youth agency.
 

2. Other local service agencies and entities that provide services to students experiencing educational
instability.
 

3. Other school districts on issues of prompt identification, transfer of records, transportation and other
inter-district activities.
 

4. District staff responsible for the provision of services under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and
the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.[11][28]
 

5. State and local housing agencies responsible for comprehensive housing affordability strategies.
 

The district’s point of contact, in consultation with the school counselor, school social worker, home and
school visitor or school psychologist and the student’s Individualized Education Program (IEP) team or
Section 504 Team, shall:[4]

1. Facilitate the student’s expedited consultation with the school counselor or other mental health
professionals, as appropriate.

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11434a
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/675
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=31&subsctn=1
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6311
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=31&subsctn=1
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=31&subsctn=1
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6311
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=31&subsctn=1


3/24/23, 2:21 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 4/11

2. Facilitate the prompt placement of the student in appropriate courses.

3. Connect the student with appropriate educational services.

4. Immediately request the prior school entity, county agency and the student’s education decision
maker to provide the complete student information and records, including an IEP or Section 504
service agreement, if applicable. Within ten (10) business days, the prior school entity located within
Pennsylvania shall provide the requested information and records to ensure proper transfer of course
credits, grades and an IEP or Section 504 service agreement, if applicable.

5. Develop and execute a graduation plan in collaboration with the student in grades nine (9) through
twelve (12) to support the student in graduating. The graduation plan shall be included in the
student’s education records.

Additional Responsibilities to Support Homeless Students-

The district's point of contact shall ensure that public notice of the educational rights of homeless children
and youths is disseminated in locations frequented by parents/guardians of homeless children and youths,
and unaccompanied youths, including schools, shelters, public libraries and soup kitchens. Such notice shall
be provided in a manner and form understandable to the parents/guardians of homeless children and
youths, and unaccompanied youths.[27]
 
The district's point of contact shall provide reliable, valid and comprehensive data to the Coordinator of
Pennsylvania's Education for Children and Youth Experiencing Homelessness (ECYEH) Program in
accordance with federal and state laws and regulations.[27]

Training

The district’s point of contact shall provide professional development and training to school staff on the
education needs of students experiencing educational instability.

Additional Training to Support Homeless Students -

The district's point of contact shall participate in professional development programs and other technical
assistance activities offered by the Coordinator of Pennsylvania's Education for Children and Youth
Experiencing Homelessness Program.[27]

The district's point of contact shall arrange professional development programs for school staff.[27]

Guidelines
 
Students enrolled in this district experiencing educational instability shall be provided support and services,
as appropriate to each individual student’s needs, in accordance with Board policy.[4]

Minimal documentation shall be required for a student experiencing educational instability to qualify for
supports and services. Information used to determine that a student is experiencing educational instability
may be confirmed verbally, in writing or by another manner by shelter providers, outreach workers, case
managers, juvenile probation officers and others. 

Parents/Guardians and students have the authority to determine what information shall be shared with the
district.

Information related to the student’s educational instability status shall be confidential and disclosed by the
point of contact or other administrators only to other school staff who have a legitimate need to know
unless authorized by the student or parent/guardian.[29][30]

Enrollment

Except when an unaccompanied youth or the parents/guardians of a homeless youth request otherwise, it
shall be presumed that a student experiencing educational instability shall continue to be enrolled in their
school of origin unless it is determined that it is not in the student’s best interest to remain in the school of

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=31&subsctn=1


3/24/23, 2:21 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 5/11

origin.[5][27]

In accordance with the homeless child's or youth's best interest, the district shall continue to enroll a
homeless student in the student's school of origin within the district while the student remains homeless
and through the end of the academic year in which the student obtains permanent housing.[27]

An unaccompanied youth or the parents/guardians of a homeless student may request enrollment in the
grade-appropriate school with the district where the student is actually living or a school of origin in another
district.[27]

The district's point of contact shall assist an unaccompanied youth in placement or enrollment decisions,
giving priority to the views of the student in determining where the student will be enrolled.[27]

Best Interest Determination -

The best interest determination shall be made in accordance with federal and state laws and regulations,
court orders and established local procedures.

In making a best interest determination, the district shall:[5][27]

1. Presume the school of origin is in the best interest of the homeless youth or unaccompanied youth,
unless when the unaccompanied youth or the parents/guardians of a homeless youth request
otherwise. 

2. Consider student-centered factors related to the child’s best interest, such as the impact of mobility on
achievement, education, appropriateness of the current educational setting, health and safety, and
proximity to living arrangements including foster care placement.

The cost of transportation shall not be used as a factor in the best interest determination.

Timeliness of Enrollment -

When a school receives a student experiencing educational instability, the school shall immediately enroll
the student and begin instruction, even if:[4][5][7][29][30][31][32][33][34][35]

1. The student is unable to produce records normally required for enrollment.[27][31]

2. The application or enrollment deadline has passed.[27][31][32]

The district's point of contact shall immediately contact the school last attended by the student to obtain
relevant academic or other records.[27]

The district may require a parent/guardian to submit contact information.

Grade Level Assignment -

If the district is unable to determine the student's grade level due to missing or incomplete records, the
district may administer tests or utilize appropriate means to determine the student's assignment within the
school.[36]

Dispute Resolution

If a dispute involving a student experiencing educational instability arises, the concern shall be addressed
and/or resolved in accordance with Board policies, law and regulations, unless otherwise stated below.[37]

Dispute Resolution for Homeless Students -

If the district determines that it is not in the student’s best interest to attend the school of origin or the
school requested by the unaccompanied youth or parent/guardian, the district shall provide the
unaccompanied youth or parent/guardian with a written explanation of the reasons for its determination.
The explanation shall be in a manner and form understandable to the unaccompanied youth or
parent/guardian and shall include information regarding the right to appeal.[27]

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6311
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6311
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=31&subsctn=1
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6311
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-119/subchapter-VI/part-B
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432


3/24/23, 2:21 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 6/11

If a dispute arises over eligibility, enrollment or school selection:[27]

1. The parent/guardian or unaccompanied youth shall be referred to the district's point of contact, who
shall assist in the dispute resolution process.

2. The student shall be immediately enrolled in the school in which enrollment is sought, pending final
resolution of the dispute, including all available appeals.

3. The district's point of contact shall issue a written decision of the dispute within twenty (20) business
days of being notified of the dispute.

A parent/guardian or unaccompanied youth may file a complaint with the Coordinator of Pennsylvania's
Education for Children and Youth Experiencing Homelessness Program.

Dispute Resolution for Students in Foster Care -

If a dispute arises over the appropriate school placement for a child in foster care, to the extent feasible and
appropriate, the child shall remain in their school of origin, pending resolution of the dispute.[2][38]

Education Records

Information about a student's educational instability shall be treated as a student education record subject
to the protections of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), and shall not be deemed to be
directory information.[29][30][39]

Comparable Services

Students experiencing educational instability shall be provided services comparable to those offered to other
district students including, but not limited to:[3][27][40]

1. Transportation services.[10]

2. School nutrition programs.[21]

3. Career and technical education.[12]

4. Educational programs for which the student meets the eligibility criteria, such as:
 

a. Services provided under Title I or similar state or local programs.[41]

b. Programs for English Learners.[42]

c. Programs for students with disabilities.[11]

d. Programs for gifted and talented students.[16]

Transportation for Homeless Students
 
The district shall provide transportation for homeless students to their school of origin or the school they
attend in the district.[3][10][27]
 
If the school of origin is outside district boundaries or homeless students live in another district but will
attend their school of origin in this district, the school districts shall agree upon a method to apportion the
responsibility and costs of the transportation.[27]
 
Transportation for Students in Foster Care –

The district shall ensure that children in foster care needing transportation to their school of origin promptly
receive transportation in a cost-effective manner.[6][10]

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1232g
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=6&subsctn=0
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=6&subsctn=0
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6312


3/24/23, 2:21 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 7/11

To ensure that transportation for children in foster care to their school of origin is provided, arranged, and
funded, the district shall collaborate with the local children and youth agency to develop a local
transportation plan.[6]

The transportation plan shall address the following:[6]

1. The procedure the district and local children and youth agency will follow to provide transportation for
children in foster care in a cost-effective manner and in accordance with applicable law.[8]

2. How transportation costs will be covered if additional costs are incurred. 

3. Dispute resolution procedures to ensure that any disagreements regarding the cost of transportation
are resolved promptly and fairly, and do not impact a student’s ability to remain in the school of origin
during the dispute resolution process.

The district shall submit the local transportation plan, including any updates or revisions, to the
Pennsylvania Department of Education.

Transportation shall be provided to children in foster care in accordance with the local transportation plan
regardless of whether transportation is provided to district students.

Course Credit and Graduation

The district shall collaborate with each student experiencing educational instability in grades nine (9)
through twelve (12) to develop and execute a graduation plan to facilitate the student’s timely graduation.
The district’s efforts to ensure that the student experiencing educational instability graduates in a timely
manner may include:[4][5][6]

1. Waiving a specific course required for graduation if similar coursework has been satisfactorily
completed in another school entity or the student has demonstrated competency in that content area.
Evidence as to whether coursework has been satisfactorily completed and the amount of full or partial
credit assigned, may be determined through any of the following:[4][19]
 

a. Competency demonstration by the student.

b. Performance on an examination.

c. Successful completion of a career and technical education course.

d. Other evidence or method determined appropriate by the district.

2. If a specific course requirement cannot be waived, the district shall provide an alternative or modified
course of study that is currently offered to students and that will assist the student with acquiring the
required work or competency requirements by the anticipated graduation date.

3. If, after considering full and partial course credits, waiving courses or providing alternative courses of
study, the district determines that the student meets the established graduation requirements, the
student shall be allowed to participate in the graduation ceremony and graduate with their peers.

If the student is determined not eligible for graduation, the district may request a high school diploma
from the prior school entity. The prior school entity may issue a diploma if the student meets the prior
school entity’s graduation requirements.

Keystone Diploma –

In any school year for which demonstration of proficiency on a Keystone exam is required for graduation, a
student who has successfully satisfied the graduation requirements may obtain a secondary school diploma
known as the Keystone Diploma from the PA Department of Education, if both of the following provisions
apply:[4][43]

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6312
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6312
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/675
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=31&subsctn=1
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6311
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6312
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=31&subsctn=1
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=31&subsctn=1
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=1&sctn=21&subsctn=0


3/24/23, 2:21 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 8/11

1. All other graduation options have been exhausted.

2. The student is unable to obtain a diploma from the student’s prior or receiving school entity.

The district’s point of contact shall assist the student in determining the student’s eligibility for a Keystone
Diploma and, if eligible, obtaining the Keystone Diploma from the PA Department of Education.[4][43]

Students with Disabilities –

Students experiencing educational instability who have an IEP shall maintain the right to special education
and the right to graduate either through attainment of credits or through the completion of the goals
established in their IEP.[11][19]

Students with an IEP may elect to remain in school until age twenty-one (21) even if the district determines
there is an earlier pathway to graduation. Such students may participate in the graduation ceremony with
their current graduating class, even if the student elected to remain in school.[19]
 

https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=31&subsctn=1
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=1&sctn=21&subsctn=0


3/24/23, 2:21 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 9/11



3/24/23, 2:21 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 10/11

Legal 1. 22 PA Code 11.18

2. 24 P.S. 1305

3. 24 P.S. 1306

4. 24 P.S. 1331.1

5. 20 U.S.C. 6311

6. 20 U.S.C. 6312

7. 42 U.S.C. 11431 et seq

8. 42 U.S.C. 675

9. Pol. 221

10. Pol. 810

11. Pol. 113

12. Pol. 115

13. Pol. 121

14. Pol. 122

15. Pol. 123

16. Pol. 114

17. Pol. 231

18. Pol. 124

19. Pol. 217

20. Pol. 223

21. Pol. 808

22. Pol. 110

23. 23 Pa. C.S.A. 6301 et seq

24. 42 Pa. C.S.A. 6301 et seq

25. 45 CFR 1355.20

26. 42 U.S.C. 11434a

27. 42 U.S.C. 11432

28. Pol. 103.1

29. Pol. 113.4

30. Pol. 216

31. Pol. 200

32. Pol. 201

33. Pol. 203

34. Pol. 204

35. Pol. 209

36. Pol. 206

37. Pol. 906

38. Pol. 202

39. 20 U.S.C. 1232g

40. Pol. 146

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter11/s11.18.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=6&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=31&subsctn=1
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6311
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6312
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-119/subchapter-VI/part-B
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/675
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=23&div=0&chpt=63
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=42&div=0&chpt=63
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/45/1355.20#
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11434a
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/11432
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1232g


3/24/23, 2:21 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 11/11

41. Pol. 918

42. Pol. 138

43. 24 P.S. 121

20 U.S.C. 6301 et seq

22 PA Code 403.1

34 CFR Part 99

67 Fed. Reg. 10698

PA Education for Homeless Children and Youth State Plan

Basic Education Circular, August 1, 2022: Act 1 of 2022 - Assisting Students Experiencing
Education Instability

Ensuring Educational Stability for Foster Care Youth - Transportation Plan Guide

https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=1&sctn=21&subsctn=0
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-70/subchapter-I
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter403/s403.1.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-99
https://www.federalregister.gov/articles/2002/03/08/02-5737/mckinney-vento-education-for-homeless-children-and-youths-program
https://www.education.pa.gov/Policy-Funding/BECS/Purdons/Pages/Act1of2022AssistingStudentsExperiencingEducationInstability--.aspx


3/24/23, 2:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/5

Book Policy Manual

Section 800 Operations

Title Electronic Data Storage (formerly known as Breach of Computerized Personal Information)

Code 830

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Reviewed July 27, 2015

Purpose
 
With the increased reliance upon electronic data, and the maintenance of personal information of students
and employees in electronic format, the Board is concerned about the risk of a breach in the district’s
electronic system security and the possible disclosure of personal information. This policy addresses the
manner in which the district will respond to unauthorized access and acquisition of computerized data that
compromises the security and confidentiality of personal information.
 
Authority
 
The Board directs that district administrators shall provide appropriate notification of any computerized
system security breach of district-owned or utilized equipment to any state resident whose unencrypted and
unredacted personal information was or is reasonably believed to have been accessed or acquired by
unauthorized persons.[1]
 
Definitions
 
Breach of the system’s security - unauthorized access and acquisition of computerized data that
materially compromises the security or confidentiality of personal information maintained by the district as
part of the database of personal information regarding multiple individuals and that the district reasonably
believes has caused or will cause loss or injury to any state resident. Good faith acquisition of personal
information by an employee or agent of the school district for the purpose of the district is not a breach of
the security of the system if the personal information is not used for a purpose other than the lawful
purpose of the district and is not subject to further unauthorized disclosure.[2]
 
Encryption - the use of an algorithmic process to transform data into a form in which there is low
probability of assigning meaning without use of a confidential process or key.[2]
 
Individual - means any natural person, not an entity or company.
 
Personal information - includes an individual’s first name or first initial and/or last name in combination
with and linked to any one or more of the following, when not encrypted or redacted:[2]

1. Social security number.
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2005&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0094.
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2005&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0094.
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2005&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0094.
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2005&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0094.


3/24/23, 2:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/5

2. Driver’s license number or state identification card number issued instead of a driver’s license.
 

3. Financial account number, credit or debit card number, in combination with any required security code,
access code, or password that would permit access to an individual’s financial account.

Personal information does not include publicly available information that is lawfully made available to the
general public from federal, state, or local government, or public records.[3]
 
Records - means any material, regardless of its physical form, on which information is recorded or
preserved by any means, including written or spoken words, graphically depicted, printed or
electromagnetically transmitted. This term does not include publicly available directories containing
information that an individual has voluntarily consented to have publicly disseminated or listed, such as
name, address, or telephone number.[2]
 
Redact - the term includes, but is not limited to, the alteration or truncation such that no more than the
last four (4) digits of a Social Security number, driver’s license number, state identification card number, or
account number is accessible as part of the data.[2]
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
The Superintendent or his/her designee shall ensure that the district provides notice of any system security
breach, following discovery, to any state resident whose unencrypted and unredacted personal information
was or is reasonably believed to have been accessed and acquired by an unauthorized person. Such notice
shall be made without a reasonable delay, except when a law enforcement agency determines and advises
the district in writing that the notification would impede a criminal or civil investigation, or the district must
take necessary measures to determine the scope of the breach and to restore the reasonable integrity of
the data system. The district will also provide notice of the breach if the encrypted information is accessed
and acquired in an unencrypted form, if the security breach is linked to a breach of security of the
encryption, or if the security breach involves a person with access to the encryption key.[4]
 
Guidelines
 
The district will provide notice by at least one (1) of the following methods:[2][4]

1. Written notice to last known home address for the individual.
 

2. Telephone notice if the individual can be reasonably expected to receive the notice and the notice is
given in a clear and conspicuous manner; describes the incident in general terms; verifies the personal
information but does not require the individual to provide personal information; and provides a
telephone number to call or Internet website to visit for further information or assistance.
 

3. Email notice, if a prior relationship exists and the school district has a valid email address for the
individual.
 

4. Substitute notice if the district determines that the cost of notice exceeds $100,000, the affected
individuals exceed 175,000 people, or the district does not have sufficient contact information.
Substitute notice shall consist of an email notice, conspicuous posting of the notice on the district’s
website, and notification to major statewide media.
 

5. If the district provides notification to more than 1,000 persons at one (1) time, the district shall also
notify all consumer reporting agencies that compile and maintain files on consumers on a nationwide
basis of the timing, distribution and number of notices, without unreasonable delay.[5][6]

 
 
 
Purpose
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2005&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0094.
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2005&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0094.
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2005&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0094.
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2005&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0094.
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2005&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0094.
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/15/1681a
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2005&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0094.


3/24/23, 2:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/5

The Board is committed to the secure management of the district’s electronic data to ensure the
confidentiality, integrity, and the availability of the data for all district users. 
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
The Superintendent shall develop procedures to implement this policy, and shall delegate to their
designee(s) the right to enforce this policy.
 
Definitions
 
Sensitive Electronic Data – electronic data stored by the District that includes student records, employee
records, financial records, and any other confidential or sensitive information. 
 
Transitory Electronic Data – temporary electronic data not regularly stored by the District including, but
not limited to, website cookie data, social media posts, live chat, deleted messages, and video surveillance
that has not been purposefully saved.
 
Personal Information - An individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination with and
linked to any one or more of the following data elements when the data elements are not encrypted or
redacted:

(i)  Social Security number.
 

(ii)  Driver's license number or a State identification card number issued in lieu of a driver's license.
 

(iii)  Financial account number, credit or debit card number, in combination with any required security
code, access code or password that would permit access to an individual's financial account.

 
(iv)  Medical information.
 
 
(v)  Health insurance information.
 
(vi)  A user name or e-mail address, in combination with a password or security question and answer
that would permit access to an online account.

 
Guidelines
 
Data Security Controls
The Superintendent, or their designee, shall utilize appropriate technical controls including firewalls,
virus/malware detection, network access controls, user access controls, intrusion detection systems,
encryption, and/or regular software updates to maintain the integrity and security of all of the District’s
electronic data.
 
Access Controls
Sensitive electronic data shall be accessible to individual users on a need-to-know basis only.  The
Superintendent, or their designee, shall ensure that technical controls are utilized to effectively restrict
access to sensitive electronic data to individuals with a legitimate educational or operational purpose to
access such data.
 
Backups
The Superintendent, or their designee, shall ensure that the District maintains regular and up-to-date
backups of all sensitive electronic data, and that such back-ups are stored either offline or are sent to
secure off-site storage.   
 
Vendors



3/24/23, 2:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 4/5

The District may engage vendors who will have access to sensitive electronic data.  In such cases, the
Superintendent, or their designees, shall ensure that the vendor is required to adhere to the same data
security standards as outlined in this policy, and shall ensure the appropriate provisions in the vendor
contract to ensure compliance. 
 
Data Storage
Sensitive electronic data may only be stored in secure storage approved by the District.  The Director of
Technology shall maintain a list of approved storage options for sensitive electronic data and shall
disseminate such list at least annually to all staff and administrators. 
 
Retention
Sensitive electronic data shall be retained in accordance with the District’s record retention policy and
record retention schedule.  Transitory electronic data shall only be maintained as delineated in the
record retention schedule. 
 
Personal E-mail
Personal e-mail accounts (accounts not issued by the District) shall not be used to transmit the
District’s sensitive electronic data in any way (including e-mailing files to/from one’s own District e-mail
account).
 
Personal Electronic Devices
Employees should exercise caution, and utilize appropriate security measures such as password protection
on their personal electronic device, to prevent any unauthorized access to sensitive electronic data.  In no
case shall employees store sensitive electronic data locally on the hard drive or internal memory of the
employee’s personal electronic device.  
 
Data Breach
Any actual or suspected data breach (including unauthorized access to sensitive electronic data or exceeding
one’s authorization to electronic data) must be immediately reported to the Director of Technology. 
 
Any data breach that results in unauthorized access to unredacted and unencrypted personal information
shall be immediately reported to the Superintendent.  The Superintendent, or their designee shall follow the
notification procedures required by the Breach of Personal Information Notification Act. 
 
Risk Assessments
The Director of Technology shall conduct regular vulnerability and risk assessments to monitor compliance
with this policy.
 
Penalties for  Violations
Violations of this policy, other Board policies, administrative regulations, and/or state or federal laws,
including unauthorized access to sensitive electronic data,  will result in discipline, up to and including
dismissal.  If appropriate, referrals will be made to law enforcement officials. 
 
Development of Administrative Guidelines
The Superintendent or their designee may develop administrative guidelines to implement this policy.  The
Superintendent shall ensure that all students and employees are made aware of this policy and any
administrative guidelines by means of the employee and student handbooks, the school district website, or
other reasonable means. 
 
 
 



3/24/23, 2:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 5/5

Legal 1. 73 P.S. 2301 et seq

2. 73 P.S. 2302

3. Policy 800-Records Management Policy; 800AG1 Record Retention Schedule

3. Pol. 801

4. 73 P.S. 2303

5. 15 U.S.C. 1681a

6. 73 P.S. 2305

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2005&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0094.
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2005&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0094.
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2005&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0094.
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/15/1681a
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2005&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0094.


3/24/23, 2:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/3

Book Policy Manual

Section 000 Local Board Procedures

Title Functions

Code 003

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised April 27, 2020

Last Reviewed November 24, 2014

Legislative
 
The Board shall exercise leadership through its rule-making power by adopting Board procedures and
policies for the organization and operation of the school district. Those procedures and policies which are
not dictated by local, state or federal statutes, or regulations of the State Board, or ordered by a court of
competent authority may be adopted, amended, or repealed at any meeting of the Board, provided the
proposed adoption, amendment or repeal has been proposed at a previous Board meeting and has remained
on the agenda of each succeeding Board meeting until approved or rejected.[1][2][3][4][5][6]
 
Changes in a proposed Board procedure or policy, except for minor editorial revisions, at the second reading
shall cause that reading to constitute a first reading.[2]
 
The Board may, upon a majority vote, cause to suspend at any time the operation of a Board procedure or
policy, provided the suspension does not conflict with legal requirements. Such suspension shall be effective
for the time period specified in the motion suspending the policy.[2]
 
Temporary adoption or amendment of a Board procedure or policy may be granted by the Board in lieu of
formal adoption or amendment to meet emergency conditions or special events which will or will have taken
place before formal action can be taken.
 
Board procedures and policies shall be adopted, amended, or repealed by a majority vote of the Board.[7]
 
The adoption, modification, repeal, or suspension of a Board procedure or policy shall be recorded in the
minutes of the Board meeting. All current procedures and policies shall be maintained in the Board Policy
Manual and disseminated appropriately.[8]
 
Executive
 
The Board shall exercise its executive power by the appointment of a district Superintendent, who shall
enforce the statutes of the Commonwealth, the regulations of the State Board of Education, the policies of
the Board, and all other applicable laws and regulations.[9][10][11]
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=1&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=11&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=10&sctn=1&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=10&sctn=81&subsctn=0


3/24/23, 2:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/3

The Superintendent shall be responsible for implementing Board policies and establishing administrative
regulations guidelines for the operation of the school district that are not inconsistent with state and
federal statutes or regulations; are dictated by the policies of this Board; are binding on district employees
and students when issued; and shall be submitted available to the Board for review. The Board reserves
the right to alter or rescind any such administrative regulation.[3][5][12]
 
The Board reserves the right to review and to direct revisions of administrative regulations
guidelines when it considers the regulations guidelines  to be inconsistent with Board policy or district
practices. However, the Board shall not adopt administrative regulations guidelines unless required by law
or requested by the Superintendent. Such adoption and/or amendment of administrative regulations
guidelines shall adhere to the policy for adoption and amendment of Board procedures and policies.
 
The Board delegates authority to the Superintendent to take necessary action in circumstances not provided
for in Board policy. The Superintendent shall promptly inform the Board of such action. The
Superintendent’s decision may be subject to review by the Board.
 
The Superintendent shall implement a procedure to inform Board members and designated employees of
their responsibility under the Ethics Law.[14]
 
Whenever responsibility is delegated to the Superintendent or other administrator, it is understood that such
individual may designate a representative to act on his/her their behalf.
 
Review
 
The Board may assume jurisdiction over controversies or disputes arising within this school district
concerning any matter over which the Board has authority granted by statute or where the Board has
retained jurisdiction in contract or policies.[3]
 
In furtherance of its adjudicatory function, the Board may hold hearings in accordance with law which shall
offer the parties to a dispute, on notice duly given, a fair and impartial forum for the resolution of the
matter.[13]
 
Beyond the basic requirements of due process, a hearing may vary in form and content in line with the
severity of the consequences that may flow from it, the difficulty of establishing findings of fact from
conflicting evidence, the impact of the Board's decision on the school district, and any other reason deemed
by the Board to require a change in hearing content, procedure, alike.[13]
 
Evaluation of Board Procedures and Goals
 
The Board shall plan an annual evaluation of its functions as a Board. The Board may evaluate Board
procedures, relationships, or activities, or focus on a particular area or issue.
 
The Board, working with the Superintendent, shall develop an annual plan Board Goals.

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=02
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=02


3/24/23, 2:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/3

Legal 1. 24 P.S. 301

2. 24 P.S. 407

3. 24 P.S. 510

4. 24 P.S. 511

5. Pol. 000

6. Pol. 009

7. Pol. 006

8. Pol. 007

9. 24 P.S. 508

10. 24 P.S. 1001

11. 24 P.S. 1081

12. Pol. 003.1

13. 2 Pa. C.S.A. 551 et seq

14. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 1101 et seq

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=1&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=11&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=10&sctn=1&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=10&sctn=81&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=02
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11


3/24/23, 2:32 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/6

Book Policy Manual

Section 000 Local Board Procedures

Title Membership

Code 004

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Reviewed November 24, 2014

Number
 
The Board shall consist of nine (9) voting members.[1]
 
The Superintendent shall have a seat on the Board and the right to speak on all matters, but not the right
to vote.[2]
 
Qualifications
 
Each member of the Board shall meet the following qualifications:

1. Be of good moral character, be at least eighteen (18) years of age, have been a resident of the district
for at least one (1) year prior to the date of his/her their election or appointment, and not be a holder
of any office or position as specified in Section 322 of the School Code; nor a member of a municipal
council.[3]

2. Shall not have been removed from any office of trust under federal, state, or local laws for any
malfeasance in such office.[4]
 

3. Shall not be engaged in a business transaction with the school district, be employed by the school
district, or receive pay for services from the school district, except as provided by law.[5][6]
 

4. Shall take and subscribe to the oath or affirmation prescribed by statute before entering the duties of
the office.[7]

5. Shall file a statement of financial interests with the Board Secretary or designee at the following
times:[8][9][10][11][12]
 

a. Before taking the oath of office or entering upon his/her their duties, or as soon as practical
after an appointment.
 

b. Annually by May 1 while serving on the Board.
 

c. By May 1 of the year after leaving the Board.
Election
 
Election of members of the Board shall be in accordance with law.[13]
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=10&sctn=81&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=22&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=23&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=24&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=21&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11&sctn=4&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/051/chapter15/s15.2.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/051/chapter15/s15.3.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3


3/24/23, 2:32 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/6

Vacancies
 
A vacancy shall occur by reason of death, resignation, removal from a district or region, or otherwise. Such
vacancy shall be filled in accordance with the School Code and Sunshine Act and by appointment by a
majority vote of the remaining members of the Board within thirty (30) days of the occurrence of the
vacancy. The Board member so appointed shall serve for the remainder of the unexpired term or, if earlier,
until the first Monday in December after the first municipal election occurring more than sixty (60)
days after the vacancy occurred following his/her appointment. When a majority of the memberships are
vacant, such vacancies shall be filled by the Court of Common Pleas of Chester County.[14][15][16][17][18]
[19]
 
Temporary Vacancy—Active Military Service
 
A temporary vacancy shall be declared when a school director is ordered to active duty in the
military forces of the United States for a period of more than thirty (30) days. The temporary
vacancy shall be filled in accordance with the School Code and Sunshine Act and by appointment
by a majority vote of the remaining members of the Board within thirty (30) days of the
occurrence of the temporary vacancy. The school director so appointed shall serve either until
the school director returns from active duty or until expiration of the term for which they were
elected, whichever occurs first.
 
Term
 
The term of office of each Board member shall be four (4) years and shall expire on the first Monday of
December, except for a Board member appointed or elected to fill a vacancy. A Board member appointed to
fill a vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the unexpired term or, if earlier, until the first Monday in
December after the first municipal election occurring more than sixty (60) days  after the vacancy
occurred following his/her appointment. The term of a Board member elected to an unexpired term shall
expire at the termination of that term.[1][14]
 
Removal
 
Whenever a Board member is no longer a resident of West Chester Area School District or the region
s/he they represents, his/her their eligibility to serve on the Board shall cease.[14][20]
 
If a Board member shall neglect or refuse to attend two (2) successive regular meetings of the Board,
unless detained by sickness or prevented by necessary absence from the district, or if in attendance at any
meeting s/he they shall neglect or refuse to act in his/her their official capacity as a school director, the
remaining members of the Board may declare such office vacant on the affirmative vote of a majority of the
remaining members of the Board.[18][21]
 
If a person elected or appointed as a Board member, having been notified, shall refuse or neglect to qualify
as such director, the remaining members may, within ten (10) days following the beginning of
his/her their term of office, declare said office vacant on the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining
members of the Board.[18][21]
 
Expenses
 
When attendance has been authorized by the Board, Board members, a nonmember Board Secretary,
and solicitor(s) shall be reimbursed for necessary expenses incurred as delegates to any state convention or
association of school directors' convention held within the state, or for necessary expenses incurred in
attendance authorized by the Board at any other meeting held within the state or at an educational
convention out-of-state. All such expenses shall be itemized and made available for public inspection at the
next succeeding Board meeting.[22]
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=15&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=16&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=17&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=18&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=19&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=15&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=15&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/Li/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1874&sessInd=0&act=0120
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=19&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=19&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=16&subsctn=1


3/24/23, 2:32 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/6

No member shall be reimbursed for more than two (2) out-of-state meetings in one (1) school year without
the express approval by the majority of the Board.
 
Board members shall be entitled to be reimbursed for mileage and all expenses actually and necessarily
incurred in attending Board meetings, conventions and other functions held on behalf of the district,
provided that the reimbursement for attendance at meeting shall not exceed an average of four (4) per
month per year.
 
Expenses shall be reimbursed only upon presentation of an itemized, verified statement, except that
advance payments may be made upon presentation of estimated expenses to be incurred.
 
Expenses for mileage shall be reimbursed at the IRS rate.
 
Orientation
 
The Board believes that the preparation of each Board member for the performance of duties is essential to
the effectiveness of the Board's functioning. The Board shall encourage each new Board member to
understand the functions of the Board, acquire knowledge of matters related to the operation of the schools,
and review Board procedures and policies.
 
Accordingly, the Board shall give to each new Board member, no later than his/her their  first regular
meeting, for use during  his/her their term on the Board the following items:

1. A copy of the School Code.[23]
 

2. A copy of the Board Policy Manual.
 

3. The current budget statement, audit report, and related fiscal materials.
 

4. The current Strategic Comprehensive Plan.
 

5. A copy of the Board’s adopted Code of Conduct and Standards for Effective School Governance.
Each new Board member shall be invited to meet with the Board President, Superintendent, and Board
Secretary to discuss Board functions, procedures, and policy.
 
Board Member Education/Training
 
The Board places a high priority on the importance of a planned and continuing program of inservice
education and training for its members. The purpose of the planned program shall be to enhance the quality
and effectiveness of the Board’s governance and leadership.
 
Inservice Education
 
The Board, in conjunction with the Superintendent, shall plan specific inservice education programs and
activities designed to assist Board members in their efforts to improve their skills as policy-making leaders;
expand their knowledge about issues, programs, and initiatives affecting the district’s educational programs
and student achievement; and deepen their insights into the nature of leadership, governance, and
community engagement.
 
The school community shall be kept informed about the Board’s continuing inservice education and training
and the anticipated short and long-term benefits to the district and its schools.[24]
 
The Board shall annually budget funds to support its planned program of inservice education and training.
 
The Board establishes the following activities as the basis for its planned program of inservice education and
training:

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=19&subsctn=0


3/24/23, 2:32 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 4/6

1. Participation in School Board conferences, workshops, and conventions.
 

2. District-sponsored inservice education and training programs designed to meet Board needs.
 

3. Subscriptions to publications addressed to Board member concerns.
 

4. Maintenance of resources and reference materials accessible to Board members.
 
Required Training Program: Newly Elected or Appointed School Directors [28]
 
Each newly elected or appointed school director shall complete, during the first year after
election or appointment, a training program consisting of at least five (5) hours of instruction,
including, at a minimum, information regarding:
 

1. Instruction and academic programs, to include, but not be limited to, a minimum of one
(1) hour of instruction on best practices related to trauma-informed approaches.
 

2. Personnel.
 

3. Fiscal management.
 

4. Operations.
 

5. Governance.
 

6. Ethics and open meetings, to include accountability requirements.
 
Required Training Program: Re-elected or Re-appointed School Directors [28]
 
Each re-elected or re-appointed school director shall, within one (1) year after such re-election
or re-appointment, complete an advanced training program consisting of at least three (3) hours
of instruction, including:
 

1. Information on relevant changes to federal and state public school law and regulations.
 

2. Fiscal management.
 

3. Trauma-informed approaches.
 

4. Other information deemed appropriate by the PA Department of Education to enable
school directors to serve effectively.

 
Membership in School Boards Associations –
 
It shall be the policy of the Board to maintain membership in a school boards association.
 
The Board shall seek to participate as fully as possible in the activities of these organizations.
 
Conference Attendance 
 
In keeping with its stated priority on the importance of continuing inservice education and training for its
members, the Board encourages the participation of all members at appropriate School Board conferences,
workshops, and conventions. In order to control both the investment of time and expenditure of funds
necessary to implement this planned program, the Board establishes the following guidelines:[22][25]
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=16&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=16&subsctn=0


3/24/23, 2:32 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 5/6

1. The Board shall identify annually the issues, objectives, and cost benefits that can be ascribed to
participation by Board members in conferences, workshops, and conventions.
 

2. The Superintendent shall inform Board members, in a timely manner, of upcoming conferences,
workshops, and conventions.
 

3. The Board shall periodically decide which meetings appear to offer the most direct and indirect
benefits to the district.
 

4. Each Board member shall receive Board approval prior to attending a conference, workshop, or
convention at Board expense.
 

5. Funds for conference attendance shall be budgeted on an annual basis.
 

6. When a conference, workshop, or convention is not attended by the full Board, those who do
participate shall share information, recommendations, and materials acquired at the meeting that will
be beneficial to the school district.
 

7. Reimbursement to Board members for their travel expenses shall be in accordance with Board
procedures and policy.[26]
 

8. The requirements regarding reimbursement for Board members for travel expenses shall be strictly
enforced, and no payment shall be made until receipts for reimbursable expenses are submitted to the
Business Manager or designee.
 

9. Reimbursement shall be limited to actual expenses incurred, and shall not include or be construed to
include compensation to individual Board members.[7]

Liability Insurance
 
As permitted by law, the Board shall protect its members with adequate liability insurance in the event suits
for damages are entered against them for negligence in performing their official duties.[27]
 
Student Representation
 
The Board authorizes student representation at Board meetings in order to facilitate effective
communication and to provide an opportunity for students to participate in school governance.

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=21&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=7&sctn=74&subsctn=0


3/24/23, 2:32 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 6/6

Legal 1. 24 P.S. 303

2. 24 P.S. 1081

3. 24 P.S. 322

4. 24 P.S. 323

5. 24 P.S. 324

6. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 1101 et seq

7. 24 P.S. 321

8. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 1102

9. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 1104

10. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 1105

11. 51 PA Code 15.2

12. 51 PA Code 15.3

13. 24 P.S. 301 et seq

14. 24 P.S. 315

15. 24 P.S. 316

16. 24 P.S. 317

17. 24 P.S. 318

18. 24 P.S. 319

19. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 701 et seq

20. 65 P.S. 91

21. Pol. 006

22. 24 P.S. 516.1

23. 24 P.S. 519

24. Pol. 901

25. 24 P.S. 516

26. Pol. 004

27. 24 P.S. 774

Pol. 331

Pol. 813

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=10&sctn=81&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=22&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=23&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=24&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=21&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11&sctn=4&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=11&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/051/chapter15/s15.2.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/051/chapter15/s15.3.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=15&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=16&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=17&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=18&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=19&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/Li/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1874&sessInd=0&act=0120
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=16&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=19&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=16&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=7&sctn=74&subsctn=0


3/24/23, 3:18 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/4

Book Policy Manual

Section 000 Local Board Procedures

Title Organization

Code 005

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Reviewed November 24, 2014

Organization Meeting
 
The Board members shall meet and organize annually during the first week of December. Notice of the time
and place of the organization meeting shall be given to all Board members by mail and email at least five
(5) days before the meeting by the Board Secretary. The organization meeting shall be a regular meeting.
[1][2][3][4]
 
Order
 
The organization meeting shall be called to order by the Board Secretary. A temporary President shall be
elected from among the hold-over members of the Board. The Board Secretary shall be secretary of the
meeting. In an election year, the certificates of election or appointment of all new Board members shall be
read, and a list shall be prepared of the legally elected or appointed and qualified Board members.[2][5]
 
At the organization meeting, the Magisterial District Judge may an official having the power to
administer the oath or affirmation of office may administer the oath or affirmation of office to those
Board members who have not previously taken and subscribed to the same.[6][7]
 
Officers
 
Election of officers shall be by a majority vote of those present and voting. Where no such majority is
achieved on the first ballot, a second ballot shall be cast for the two (2) candidates who received the
greatest number of votes.

1. The school directors shall annually, during the first week of December, elect from their members a
President and Vice-President who shall serve for one (1) year.[3]
 

2. The school directors shall annually, during the month of May, elect a Treasurer who shall serve for one
(1) year beginning the first day of July after such election. The Treasurer may be a corporation duly
qualified and legally authorized to transact a fiduciary business in the Commonwealth, and shall not be
a member of the Board.[3]

The Treasurer shall not enter upon his/her their duties until furnishing bond in accordance with law
and with Board approval. The Treasurer shall be compensated in the manner and at the rate
determined by the Board.[8][9][10]
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=1&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=4&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=21&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=26&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=42&div=0&chpt=1&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=42&div=0&chpt=3&sctn=27&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=4&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=4&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=36&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=38&subsctn=0


3/24/23, 3:18 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/4

3. The school directors shall, during the month of May in every fourth year, elect a Secretary who shall
serve a term of four (4) years beginning the first day of July following such election, and shall not be a
member of the Board.[3]

The Secretary shall not enter upon his/her their duties until furnishing bond in accordance with law
and with Board approval. The Secretary shall be compensated in the manner and at the rate
determined by the Board.[10][11][12]

Vacancies in any office shall be filled by Board election; such officers shall serve for the remainder of the
unexpired term.
 
The same school director may not hold more than one (1) office of the Board. No commissioned officer or
professional employee of the Board shall serve, temporarily or permanently, as an officer of the Board.[3]
[13]
 
Officers of the Board serve at the pleasure of the Board and may be removed from such office by the
affirmative vote of a majority of those present and voting.[14][15]
 
Appointments
 
The Board shall have the authority to appoint:

1. A tax collector, where a tax collector is not elected to collect taxes, there is a vacancy, or an elected
tax collector refuses to qualify.[16][17]
 

2. Solicitor.[13][18]
 

3. Assistant Secretary.[19]
 

4. Independent auditor.[20]
 

5. Delegates to a state convention or association of school directors.[21]
 

6. Other appointments the Board deems necessary.
Appointees serve at the pleasure of the Board and may be removed from such appointment in accordance
with the provisions of law.[14][15]
 
Resolutions
 
The Board may at the organization meeting, but shall prior to July 1 next following, designate:

1. Depositories for school funds.[23]
 

2. Newspaper(s) of general circulation as defined in law.[24]
 

3. Normal day, place, and time for regular meetings.[4]
 

4. Normal day, place, and time for open committee meetings.
Board Committees
 
The Board has the authority to approve Board committees. Board committees authorized to take official
action or render advice on district business shall operate in accordance with the provisions of the Sunshine
Act.[15][25]
 
Committees shall not include a majority of the membership of the Board.
 
Members shall be appointed by the President, who shall serve as an ex-officio member on all committees,
and who shall appoint the Superintendent as an ex-officio member of all committees.
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=4&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=31&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=32&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=4&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=24&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=00&div=0&chpt=6&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=6&sctn=83&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=24&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=6&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=34&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=24&sctn=1&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=16&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=00&div=0&chpt=6&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=6&sctn=21&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=1&sctn=6&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=21&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7


3/24/23, 3:18 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/4

A member may request or refuse appointment to a committee.
 
Each Board committee shall be convened by a chairperson, who shall report for the committee and be
appointed by the President.
 
The President may appoint at the organization meeting, or as soon after the organization meeting as
practicable, members of the Board to the following standing committees, where they shall serve a term of
one (1) year: Pupil Services; Education; Property and Finance; and Personnel, and Policy Review.
 
Ad hoc committees may be created, charged, and assigned a fixed termination date, which may be
extended by the President.
 
Members of committees shall serve until the committee is discharged.
 
The Board shall develop Board Operation Guidelines that describe the duties and establish procedures for
the operation of standing committees.
 
Consultants
 
The Board may appoint, employ or retain consultants to provide the district with specialized services not
normally required on a continuing basis. Compensation shall be determined and approved by the Board.
 
The function of a consultant shall be to make studies and present recommendations to the Board. A
consultant shall not be charged with the implementation of a report.
 
A consultant has no administrative authority over any facet of district schools, but shall act solely as advisor
to the Board, officers, and employees.
 
The use of consultants from outside the district who promote a particular commercial product is
discouraged.



3/24/23, 3:18 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 4/4

Legal 1. 24 P.S. 401

2. 24 P.S. 402

3. 24 P.S. 404

4. 24 P.S. 421

5. 24 P.S. 426

6. 42 Pa. C.S.A. 102

7. 42 Pa. C.S.A. 327

8. 24 P.S. 436

9. 24 P.S. 438

10. Pol. 811

11. 24 P.S. 431

12. 24 P.S. 432

13. 24 P.S. 324

14. PA Const. Art. VI Sec. 7

15. Pol. 006

16. 24 P.S. 508

17. 24 P.S. 683

18. 24 P.S. 406

19. 24 P.S. 434

20. 24 P.S. 2401

21. 24 P.S. 516

23. 24 P.S. 621

24. 24 P.S. 106

25. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 701 et seq

24 P.S. 321

24 P.S. 1410

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=1&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=4&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=21&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=26&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=42&div=0&chpt=1&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=42&div=0&chpt=3&sctn=27&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=36&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=38&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=31&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=32&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=24&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=00&div=0&chpt=6&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=6&sctn=83&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=6&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=34&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=24&sctn=1&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=16&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=6&sctn=21&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=1&sctn=6&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=21&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=14&sctn=10&subsctn=0


3/24/23, 3:28 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/3

Book Policy Manual

Section 000 Local Board Procedures

Title Board Operation Guidelines

Code 005AG1

Status Second Reading

The roles and responsibilities of the Board President shall also include, but are not limited to, the
following:

 
1. Working with the Superintendent:

 
a.  Sets the agenda for business meetings, special meetings, executive session and retreats.
 
b.  Receives input from Board members for agenda items.
 
c.  Assist with Board goals being addressed by the appropriate committee.
 
d.  Works with the Superintendent and Board Secretary to assure that all Board members are
kept informed of matters pertaining to the function of the school district.

   2.  Serves as the official representative and spokesperson for the Board or delegates such
responsibilities.

 
3. With the Vice-President, presents the Board’s annual Superintendent performance review to the
Superintendent.

 
Board Standing Committees
 

Each standing committee has a chairperson. 
 

The responsibilities of the Board committee chairperson include, but are not limited to, the
following:

 
a. Sets committee agenda with the Superintendent or administrative liaison. 
 
b. Facilitates committee meeting.
 
c. Reports to the full Board on committee work
 
d. Reviews minutes with appropriate liaison.

 
Board Standing Committee Responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the following:
 
Education Committee
 



3/24/23, 3:28 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/3

The Committee typically convenes for a monthly public meeting (except the month of July). The Committee
is comprised of four (4) Board members, with one (1) of these members serving as chairperson.

 
a.  Review, present, and recommend adoption of district instructional materials, course and curriculum
proposals, programs, textbooks and other core resources to support curriculum.
 
b.  Provide a forum for informing the Board and community (through presentations and discussion)
about educational programs and practices, assessment reporting, district survey results and
the comprehensive plan.
 
c.  Review, present, and recommend other appropriate district business as required.

 
Pupil Services Committee
 
The Committee typically convenes for a monthly public meeting (except the month of July). The Committee
is comprised of four (4) Board members, with one (1) of these members serving as chairperson.
 

a.  Review, present and recommend curriculum, learning, and behavior support programs.
 
b.  Review, present, and recommend PDE required submissions that fall within the pupil services
department (counseling, mental health, attendance, special education).
 
c.  Review, present, and recommend professional development workshops and annual service
contracts for agency and individual providers.
 
d.  Provide a forum for informing the Board and community (through presentations and
discussion) about district testing, procedures relating to special education and programs
impacting students' mental, physical, emotional and social health factors that determine
educational achievement and life success.
 
e.  Review, present, and recommend other appropriate district business as required.

 
Property & Finance Committee
 
The Committee typically convenes for a monthly public meeting (except the month of July). The Committee
is comprised of four (4) Board members, with one (1) of these members serving as chairperson.
 

a. Review, present, and recommend the annual district operating budget and review actual budget
revenue/expenditures.
 
b. Review, present, and recommend the annual capital and capital reserve  budgets and review actual
budget revenue/expenditures.
 
c. Review, present, and recommend vendor contracts, budget transfers, annual audit with audit firm,
financing options for capital projects, debt service, bond issuance/refinancing, district investments and
financial/investment firm(s) to be used by the district.
 
d. Review and discuss district facility items of interest or items in process, including but not limited to
capital projects, maintenance and repair, construction programs, and litigation.
 
e. Review, present, and recommend items related to real estate, student transportation, environment,
budget, organization and policy.
 
f.  Review, present, and recommend for approval facility-related items.
 
g. Review, present, and recommend items related to inter- and intra- building communications,
building security and technical facilities support hardware and software.
 



3/24/23, 3:28 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/3

h. Review, present, and recommend other appropriate district business as required.
 

Personnel Committee
 
The Board Personnel Committee convenes as needed. Due to the nature of many personnel items, as
permitted by the Sunshine Act, these meetings may be held in executive sessions. Any items that are
informational or require official action by the committee shall be presented to the public. The Committee
is comprised of four (4) Board members, with one (1) of these members serving as chairperson.
 
Personnel items include: review, discuss and recommend, based on recommendations from the
administration, items such as: creating new positions or eliminating existing positions; appointments of new
staff; compensation plans; resignations, retirements, and terminations; and leaves of absence.
 
Policy Review Committee
 
The Committee typically convenes for a monthly public meeting (except the month of July). The Committee
is comprised of four (4) Board members, with one (1) of these members serving as chairperson.
 
The Board Policy Committee convenes to review and revise Board policies and provide recommendations for
approval of reviewed or revised policy to the Board.



4/20/23, 4:25 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/5

Book Policy Manual

Section 100 Programs

Title Discipline of Students With Disabilities

Code 113.1

Status First Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised February 22, 2021

Last Reviewed August 24, 2015

Purpose
 
The district shall develop and implement Positive Behavior Support Plans and programs for students
with disabilities who require specific interventions to address behaviors that interfere with learning.[1]
[2][3]
 
Students with disabilities who violate the Code of Student Conduct/Disciplinary Action Schedule, or
engage in inappropriate behavior, disruptive or prohibited activities and/or actions injurious to
themselves or others, which would typically result in corrective action or discipline of students without
disabilities, shall be disciplined in accordance with state and federal laws and regulations and Board
policy and, if applicable, their Individualized Education Program (IEP) and Positive Behavior Support
Plan.[1][4][5][6][7]
 
Definitions
 
Students with disabilities - school-aged children within the jurisdiction of the district who have been
evaluated and found to have one or more disabilities as defined by law, and who require, because of
such disabilities, special education and related services.[2]
 
Suspensions from school - disciplinary exclusions from school for a period of one (1) to ten (10)
consecutive school days.[7][8]
 
Expulsions from school - disciplinary exclusions from school by the Board for a period exceeding ten
(10) consecutive school days and may include permanent exclusion from school.[7][8]
 
Interim alternative educational settings - removal of a student with a disability from the student's
current placement. Interim alternative educational settings may be used by school personnel for up to
forty-five (45) school days for certain infractions committed by students with disabilities. The IEP team
shall determine the interim alternative educational setting; however, this does not constitute a change
in placement for a student with a disability.[5][9]
 
Authority

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.143.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.6.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.6.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415


4/20/23, 4:25 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/5

 
The Board directs that the district shall comply with provisions and procedural safeguards of the
Individuals With Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and federal and state regulations when disciplining
students with disabilities for violations of Board policy or district rules or regulations. No student with a
disability shall be subjected to a disciplinary change in placement if the student’s particular misconduct
is a manifestation of the student's disability. However, under certain circumstances a student with a
disability may be placed in an interim alternative educational setting by school personnel or the IEP
team could, if appropriate, change the student’s educational placement to one which is more restrictive
than the placement where the misconduct occurred.[4][5][9]
 
Provision of Education During Disciplinary Exclusions
 
During any period of expulsion, or suspension from school for more than ten (10) consecutive or for
more than fifteen (15) cumulative days in a year, or placement in an interim alternative educational
setting for disciplinary reasons, a student with a disability shall continue to receive a free and
appropriate public education (FAPE), in accordance with law.[5][8][10]
 
Guidelines
 
Suspension From School
 
With the exception of a student with an intellectual disability, a student with a disability may be
suspended for ten (10) consecutive and fifteen (15) nonconsecutive, cumulative days of school per
school year, for the same reasons and duration as a student without a disability. Such suspension shall
not constitute a change in the student’s educational placement.[4][5][8][9][11]
 
Changes in Educational Placement/Manifestation Determinations
 
For disciplinary exclusions which constitute a change in educational placement, the district shall first
determine whether the student’s behavior is a manifestation of the student's disability. Expulsion, or
exclusion from school for up to ten (10) consecutive or for more than fifteen (15) cumulative days
in a school year, or patterns of suspensions for substantially identical behaviors constitute changes in
educational placements requiring a manifestation determination. For students with intellectual disability,
any disciplinary suspension or expulsion is a change in educational placement.[4][5]
 
A student with a disability whose behavior is not a manifestation of the student's disability may be
disciplined in accordance with Board policy and district rules and regulations in the same manner and to
the same extent as students without disabilities.[4][5][6][7]
 
Parent/Guardian Appeals From Disciplinary Actions/Request for Hearing by District for Students Who
Are a Danger to Themselves or Others
 
A due process hearing may be requested by a parent/guardian of a student with a disability who
disagrees with a disciplinary placement or manifestation determination, or by the district if the district
believes that the current placement is substantially likely to result in injury to the student or others. On
parent/guardian appeal, or when the district requests a due process hearing, the hearing officer may
return the student to the placement from which the student was removed or order the student's
removal to an appropriate interim alternative educational setting for up to forty-five (45) school days if
the hearing officer determines that maintaining the student's current placement is substantially likely to
result in an injury to the student or others.[9][12]
 
Placement during appeals of disciplinary actions shall be in the interim alternative educational setting
pending the decision of the hearing officer or expiration of the time period set for the disciplinary
exclusion from the student’s regular placement unless the district and the parent/guardian agree
otherwise.[9][13]
 

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.143.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.6.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1412
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.143.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.6.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.536
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.143.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.143.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.532
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.533


4/20/23, 4:25 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/5

Students Not Identified as Disabled/Pending Evaluation
 
Students who have not been identified as disabled may be subject to the same disciplinary measures
applied to students without disabilities if the district did not have knowledge of the disability. If a
request for evaluation is made during the period the student is subject to disciplinary measures, the
evaluation shall be expedited. Absent a danger, student placement remains in place until the evaluation
is complete.[9][14]
 
 
Students who have not been determined to be eligible for special education may assert the
same disciplinary protections provided above if the district had knowledge that the student
was a child with a disability before the behavior that precipitated the disciplinary action
occurred. [9][14]
 
The district will be deemed to have knowledge that a student is a child with a disability if,
before the behavior that precipitated the disciplinary action occurred:
 

1. The parent/guardian of the student has expressed concern in writing to supervisory or
administrative personnel of the district, or a teacher of the student, that the student
needs special education and related services;
 

2. The parent/guardian of the student has requested a special education evaluation of the
student; or           
 

3. The teacher of the child, or other personnel of the district, has expressed specific
concerns about a pattern of behavior demonstrated by the child, directly to the
supervisory or administrative personnel of the district.

 
Administrative Removal to Interim Alternative Educational Setting for Certain Infractions
 
School personnel may remove a student with a disability, including intellectual disability, to an interim
alternative educational setting for not more than forty-five (45) school days without regard to whether
the behavior is determined to be a manifestation of the student’s disability if the student:[5][9]

1. Carries a weapon to or possesses a weapon at school, on school property, or at school functions
under the jurisdiction of the district. For purposes of this provision, weapon is defined as a
weapon, device, instrument, material, or substance, animate or inanimate, that is used for, or is
readily capable of, causing death or serious bodily injury, except that such term does not include a
pocket knife with a blade of less than two and one-half (2 ½) inches in length.[5][9][15][16]
 

2. Knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs, as defined by law, or sells or solicits the sale of a
controlled substance, as defined by law, while at school, on school property, or at school functions
under the jurisdiction of the district.[5][9][17][18]
 

3. Has inflicted serious bodily injury upon another person while at school, on school property, or at
school functions under the jurisdiction of the district. For purposes of this provision, serious
bodily injury means bodily injury which involves a substantial risk of death, extreme physical
pain, protracted and obvious disfigurement, or protracted loss or impairment of the function of a
bodily member, organ, or mental faculty.[5][9][19]

 
Referral to Law Enforcement and Reporting Requirements
 
For reporting purposes, the term incident shall mean an instance involving an act of violence; the
possession of a weapon; the possession, use, or sale of a controlled substance or drug paraphernalia as
defined in the Pennsylvania Controlled Substance, Drug, Device and Cosmetic Act; the possession, use,

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.534
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/18/930
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/21/812
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/18/1365


4/20/23, 4:25 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 4/5

or sale of alcohol or tobacco; or conduct that constitutes an offense listed under the Safe Schools Act.
[20][21][22]
 
The Superintendent or designee shall immediately report required incidents and may report
discretionary incidents committed on school property, at any school-sponsored activity, or on a
conveyance providing transportation to or from a school or school-sponsored activity by a student with
a disability, including a student for whom an evaluation is pending, to the local police department that
has jurisdiction over the school’s property, in accordance with state and federal laws and regulations,
the procedures set forth in the memorandum of understanding with local law enforcement, and Board
policies. The Superintendent or designee shall respond to such incidents in accordance with the district’s
Special Education Plan and, if applicable, the procedures, methods, and techniques defined in the
student’s Positive Behavior Support Plan.[1][2][3][6][9][15][17][21][23][24][25][26][27][28][29][30]
[31][32][33][34]
 
For a student with a disability who does not have a Positive Behavior Support Plan, subsequent to
notification to law enforcement, the district shall convene the student’s IEP team to consider whether a
Positive Behavior Support Plan should be developed to address the student’s behavior, in accordance
with law, regulations, and Board policies.[1][3][26][31]
 
When reporting an incident committed by a student with a disability to the appropriate authorities, the
district shall provide the information required by state and federal laws and regulations and shall ensure
that copies of the special education and disciplinary records of the student are transmitted for
consideration by these authorities. The district shall ensure compliance with the Family Educational
Rights and Privacy Act when transmitting copies of the student's special education and disciplinary
records.[9][21][24][25][26][29][34][35][36][37][38]
 
In accordance with state law, the Superintendent shall annually, by July 31, report to the Office for Safe
Schools on the required form all new incidents committed by students with disabilities, including
students for whom an evaluation is pending, which occurred on school property, at any school-
sponsored activity, or on a conveyance providing transportation to or from a school or school-sponsored
activity.[20][34]
 
Positive Behavior Support Plan

When the IEP team determines a student with a disability is exhibiting behavior interfering
with learning, or when the team determines that misconduct is a manifestation of student’s
disability, and the student does not have a Positive Behavior Support Plan, the student’s IEP
team shall convene to consider whether a Positive Behavior Support Plan should be
developed to address the student’s behavior, in accordance with legal requirements and
Board policies. [3][31].

When the student has a Positive Behavior Support Plan and the student’s IEP team
determines that misconduct is a manifestation of student’s disability, the IEP team shall
convene and review the Plan and make changes as deemed appropriate by the team and
consider the need for a new functional behavioral assessment. 

Legal 1. 22 PA Code 14.133

2. Pol. 113

3. Pol. 113.2

4. 22 PA Code 14.143

5. 34 CFR 300.530

6. Pol. 218

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1972&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=64&chpt=0&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=2&subsctn=1
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.21.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.22.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.25.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.104.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.535
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.21.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.22.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.535
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1232g
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-99
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.133.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.143.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.530


4/20/23, 4:25 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 5/5

7. Pol. 233

8. 22 PA Code 12.6

9. 20 U.S.C. 1415

10. 20 U.S.C. 1412

11. 34 CFR 300.536

12. 34 CFR 300.532

13. 34 CFR 300.533

14. 34 CFR 300.534

15. Pol. 218.1

16. 18 U.S.C. 930

17. Pol. 227

18. 21 U.S.C. 812

19. 18 U.S.C. 1365

20. 24 P.S. 1303-A

21. 22 PA Code 10.2

22. 35 P.S. 780-102

23. 24 P.S. 1302.1-A

24. 22 PA Code 10.21

25. 22 PA Code 10.22

26. 22 PA Code 10.23

27. 22 PA Code 10.25

28. 22 PA Code 14.104

29. 34 CFR 300.535

30. Pol. 103.1

31. Pol. 113.3

32. Pol. 218.2

33. Pol. 222

34. Pol. 805.1

35. Pol. 113.4

36. Pol. 216

37. 20 U.S.C. 1232g

38. 34 CFR Part 99

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq

24 P.S. 510

34 CFR Part 300

Pol. 113.5

Pol. 146.1

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.6.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1415
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1412
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.536
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.532
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.533
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.534
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/18/930
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/21/812
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/18/1365
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1972&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=64&chpt=0&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=2&subsctn=1
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.21.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.22.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.25.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.104.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.535
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1232g
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-99
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-33
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-300


4/20/23, 4:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/9

Book Policy Manual

Section 200 Pupils

Title Student Records

Code 216

Status First Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised December 20, 2021

Prior Revised
Dates

6/22/2015

Authority
 
The Board recognizes its responsibility for the collection, retention, disclosure, and protection of student
records. The Board also recognizes the legal requirement to maintain the confidentiality of student
records and prohibits the unauthorized access, reproduction, and/or disclosure of student education
records, and personally identifiable information from such records.[1][2][3][4][5][6][7][8][9][10][11]
[12][13]
 
The Board shall adopt a comprehensive student records plan for the collection, maintenance, and
dissemination of student education records, that which complies with federal and state laws and
regulations, and state guidelines. Copies of the adopted student records plan shall be maintained by the
district, and revised as required by changes in federal or state law and regulations.
 
Copies of the student records plan shall be submitted to the Pennsylvania Department of Education,
upon request.
 
Definitions
 
Attendance - includes, but is not limited to, attendance in person or by paper correspondence, video
conference, satellite, Internet, or other electronic information and telecommunications technologies for
students who are not physically present in the classroom; and the period during which a person is
working under a work-study program.[14]
 
Directory information - information contained in an education record of a student that would not
generally be considered harmful or an invasion of privacy if disclosed. Directory information includes,
but is not limited to, the student's name; address; telephone listing; electronic mail address; parent
phone number and electronic mail address; photograph; date and place of birth; major field of study;
grade level; enrollment status; dates of attendance; participation in officially recognized school
activities and sports; weight and height of members of athletic teams; degrees, honors and awards
received; and the most recent educational agency or institution attended.[1][14]

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1232g
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.31.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.32.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter15/s15.9.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter4/s4.52.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=6&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=14&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=14&sctn=9&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=15&sctn=32&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=15&sctn=33&subsctn=0
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-300
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-99
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.3
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1232g
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.3


4/20/23, 4:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/9

 
Directory information does not include a student's Social Security Number; or student identification
(ID) number, except that directory information may include a student ID number, user ID, or other
unique personal identifier displayed on a student ID card/badge or used by the student for purposes of
accessing or communicating in electronic systems, but only if the identifier cannot be used to gain
access to education records except when used in conjunction with one or more factors that authenticate
the user's identity, such as a personal identification number (PIN), password, or other factor known or
possessed only by the authorized user.
 
Disclosure - permitting access to or the release, transfer or other communication of personally
identifiable information contained in education records by any means, including oral, written, or
electronic means, to any party, except the party that provided or created the record.[14]
 
Education records - records that are directly related to a student, and are maintained by the school
district or by a party acting for the school district.[1][14]
 
The term does not include:
 

1. Records kept in the sole possession of the maker, which are used only as a personal memory aid,
and are not accessible or revealed to another individual except a temporary substitute for the
maker of the record.;
 

2. Records created or received by the district after an individual is no longer a student in attendance,
and that are not directly related to the individual’s attendance as a student.;
 

3. Grades on peer-graded papers before they are collected and recorded by a teacher.; or
 

4. Other records specifically excluded from the definition of education records under the Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and its implementing regulations.
 

Eligible student - a student who has attained eighteen (18) years of age.[14]
 
Emancipated minor - a student below the age of twenty-one (21) who has chosen to establish a
domicile apart from the continued control and support of parents/guardians. The term includes a minor
living with a spouse.
 
IEP - Individualized Education Program.[15]
 
Parent -means a parent of a student and includes a natural parent, a guardian or an individual
acting as a parent of a student in the absence of a parent/guardian. The district shall give full rights to
either parent unless the district has been provided with evidence that there is a state law, court order,
or a legally binding document governing such matters as divorce, separation, or custody that
specifically revokes these rights.[14][16]
 
Personally identifiable information - includes, but is not limited to:[14]
 

1. The name of a student, the student's parents, or other family members.
 

2. The address of the student or student’s family.
 

3. A personal identifier, such as the student's Social Security Number, student number, or biometric
record.
 

http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.3
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1232g
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.3
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.3
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.3
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.4
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.3


4/20/23, 4:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/9

4. Other indirect identifiers, such as the student’s date of birth, place of birth, and mother’s maiden
name.
 

5. Other information that, alone or in combination, is linked or linkable to a specific student that
would allow a reasonable person in the school community, who does not have personal knowledge
of the relevant circumstances, to identify the student with reasonable certainty.
 

6. Information requested by a person who the district reasonably believes knows the identity of the
student to whom the education record relates.

School official with a legitimate educational interest - a person employed by the district as an
administrator, supervisor, teacher, or support staff member (including health or medical staff and law
enforcement unit personnel); a person serving on the Board; a person or company with whom the
school has outsourced services or functions it would otherwise use its own employees to perform (such
as an attorney, auditor, medical consultant, or therapist); a parent or student serving on an official
committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee; or a parent, student, or other volunteer
assisting another school official in performing his/her tasks. A school official has a legitimate
educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his/her
their professional responsibility. Criteria for determining whether the official has a legitimate interest
include, but are not limited to, whether particular information concerning the student is:
 

1. Presently or potentially relevant to the provision of education, education-related services, or
extracurricular activities or experiences, or
 

2. Necessary to protect the health, safety, or welfare of school officials and/or other students with
whom the student might have contact.

The phrase also applies to district officials and clerical staff who are responsible for the maintenance
and security of education records or auditing the district’s record keeping procedures and to attorneys,
consultants, and Board members when Board action concerning the student is required by law or when
the education or treatment of the student is the subject of present or potential litigation or legal
dispute.
 
Student - includes any individual who is or has been in attendance at the district, and regarding whom
the district maintains education records.[14]
 
Students with disabilities - a school-aged student within the jurisdiction of the district who has been
evaluated and found to have one or more disabilities as defined by law and who require, because of
such disabilities, special education and related services.[15][17][18][19]
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
The Superintendent or his/her designee shall be responsible for developing, implementing, and
monitoring the student records plan.
 
All district personnel having access to student education records shall receive training in the
requirements of Board policy, student records plan, and applicable federal and state laws and
regulations, as directed by the Superintendent.
 
Each district teacher shall prepare and maintain a record of the work and progress of each student,
including, but not limited to, the final grade, and a recommendation for promotion or retention.[10]
[20][21][22]
 
Guidelines
 

http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.3
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1401
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.101.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.8
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=15&sctn=32&subsctn=0


4/20/23, 4:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 4/9

The district's plan for the collection, retention, disclosure and protection of student records shall provide
for the following:
 

1. Safeguards to protect the student records when collecting, retaining, and disclosing personally
identifiable information.
 

2. Ensuring that parents and eligible students, including those who are disabled or have a primary
language other than English, are effectively notified of their rights and the procedures to
implement those rights, annually and upon enrollment.[23]
 

3. Procedures for the inspection, review, and copying of a student’s education records by parents
and eligible students.[24][25][26]
 

4. Procedures for requesting the amendment of a student’s education records that the parent or
eligible student believes to be inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the student’s
privacy rights.[27]
 

5. Procedures for requesting and conducting hearings to challenge the content of the student’s
education records.[28][29]
 

6. Determining the types of personally identifiable information designated as directory information.
[14][30]
 

7. Establishing guidelines for the disclosure and redisclosure of student education records and
personally identifiable information from student records.[31]
 

8. Reasonable methods to ensure that school district officials obtain access to only those education
records in which they have a legitimate educational interest.[23][32]
 

9. Maintaining required records of requests for access and each disclosure of personally identifiable
information from each student’s education records.[33]
 

10. Ensuring appropriate review, retention, disposal and protection of student records.[34]
 

11. Transferring education records and appropriate disciplinary records to other school districts.[6]
Missing Child Registration
 
In the event the district receives a request for information from the school records of a missing child,
the district shall:[35]
 

1. Attempt to obtain information on the identity of the requester.
 

2. Contact the appropriate law enforcement agency to coordinate a response.
No information in the records shall be released to the requester without first contacting the appropriate
law enforcement agency.
 

STUDENT RECORDS PROCEDURES
 

Collection, Maintenance and Destruction of Education Records
 
The collection, maintenance, destruction, access, disclosure, public notice and due process regarding
student records shall adhere to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), the Individuals
with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment, Pennsylvania Public

http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.7
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.10
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.11
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.12
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.20
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.21
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.22
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.3
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.37
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-99/subpart-D
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.7
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.31
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.32
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1953&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=66&chpt=4A&sctn=4&subsctn=0


4/20/23, 4:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 5/9

School Code, Regulations of Pennsylvania State Board of Education, Basic Education PA Code Chapter
22 and other applicable law.
 
Collection –
 

1. The district shall collect and maintain education records in accordance with the Records
Management policy, rules, procedures, and schedules promulgated thereunder, and federal and
state laws and regulations.[36]
 

2. By adoption of this policy, the Board gives consent for the collection of education records,
provided that when a survey, analysis or evaluation is used, it is consistent with Board policy.[37]

Maintenance – Transfer, Conversion and Destruction –
 

1. Education records shall be transferred, converted, and destroyed in accordance with the Records
Management policy, rules, procedures and schedules promulgated thereunder, and federal and
state laws and regulations.[36]
 

2. When the district determines that any portion of the education record of a student with disabilities
is scheduled for destruction, it shall notify, in writing, the parents/guardian or the eligible student
of this determination. The written notice shall be in the native language of the parents/guardians
or the eligible student, shall be mailed to the last known address of the parents/guardian or the
eligible student and shall: 
 

a. Identify the specific records or categories of records scheduled for destruction.;
 

b. Explain that the district shall destroy the identified records at a certain date; and.
 

c. Contain the name and number of a contact person whom the parents/guardians or eligible
student can contact to obtain additional information about or seek clarification concerning
the records.
 

3. The district shall not destroy any record that is the subject of a request for access from a
parent/guardian or eligible student, a litigation hold or a Right-to-Know Law request.

Amendment of Records
 
Amendment of Records –
 

1. A parent or eligible student may request, in writing, that the district amend any portion of an
education record that s/he they believes is inaccurate, misleading or in violation of the student’s
right to privacy. If a parent or eligible student makes an oral request, the parent or eligible
student shall be directed to make the request in writing.
 

2. Within thirty (30) school days of the receipt of the written request to amend the education record,
the administrator who is primarily responsible for maintenance of the challenged record shall
notify the parent or eligible student, in writing, whether the district will amend the record. If the
district determines that it will grant the request to amend the record, the notice to the parent or
eligible student shall either describe or provide a copy of the amended record. If the district
determines that it will not amend the record, the notice shall inform the parent or eligible student
and explain the right to request a hearing in writing.
 

3. Within ten (10) school days of receipt of a written request for a hearing, the district shall notify
the parents or eligible student of the date, time, and location of the hearing. The notice shall be



4/20/23, 4:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 6/9

sent by verifiable means.
 

4. The hearing shall be held before the Superintendent or his/her designee or, if the Superintendent
or the designee has a direct interest in the outcome of the hearing, before the principal of the
building to which the student is currently assigned or his/her designee.
 

5. The hearing shall be informal, unrecorded, and not subject to formal rules of evidence or
procedure other than those required to maintain order. The parent or eligible student shall have a
full and fair opportunity to present evidence in support of his/her position and may be
represented, at his/her expense, by an adviser, including an attorney.
 

6. Within thirty (30) days of the completion of the hearing, the district shall issue to the parent or
eligible student a written decision concerning the requested amendment to the record.  The
written decision shall be based solely on the evidence presented at the hearing and shall include a
summary of the evidence and reasons for the decision.
 

7. In the event the district does not grant the parent or eligible student’s request, the parent or
eligible student may choose to submit a statement to be placed in the education record of the
student commenting on the contested information in the record or explaining why s/he
they disagrees with the decision not to amend. The district shall:
 

a. Maintain the statement as part of the record for as long as the district maintains the
contested record or information; and.
 

b. Disclose the statement whenever it discloses that portion of the record to which the
statement pertains.

Access and Disclosure
 
Access –
 

1. The district shall allow the parents or eligible student to inspect and review the education record
of the student within forty-five (45) calendar days of receipt of an oral or written request for
access.
 

2. The district shall respond to reasonable requests from the parents or eligible student for an
explanation or interpretation of the education record.
 

3. If circumstances effectively preclude the parents or eligible student from inspecting and reviewing
the education record, the district shall provide the parents or eligible student with a copy of the
record subject to the request. When copies are not required to ensure that the parents or the
eligible student has the opportunity to inspect and review the education record, the district may
charge a fee, in accordance with Board resolution, to copy requested portions of the education
record.
 

4. When the district receives a request to inspect and review the education record of a student with
disabilities in anticipation of a meeting of the IEP or multi-disciplinary team or a due process
hearing, the district shall respond to such request within a reasonable time prior to the meeting or
hearing.
 

5. When parents or an eligible student seek to inspect and review an education record that contains
personally identifiable information concerning another student, the district shall provide access
only to that portion of the record that pertains to the requesting student.
 



4/20/23, 4:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 7/9

6. School officials with a legitimate educational interest may at any time inspect, review and obtain
copies of the education record.

Disclosure –
 

1. Any disclosure of personally identifiable information from an education record, other than set forth
herein shall require the prior written consent of the parent or the eligible student. Any document
providing such consent shall: 
 

a. Specify the records that may be disclosed.;
 

b. State the purpose of the disclosure.;
 

c. Identify the party or parties to whom disclosure may be made; and.
 

d. Be signed and dated by at least one (1) parent or the eligible student.
 

2. Prior written consent from the parent or the eligible student is not required when the disclosure of
personally identifiable information from education records is permitted by the Family Educational
Rights and Privacy Act FERPA and its implementing regulation or other applicable law. Examples
of such circumstances include, but are not limited to:
 

a. A school official with a legitimate educational interest.;
 

b. An educational agency or institution at which the student seeks or intends to enroll, or is
enrolled, as long as:
 

i. The district makes a reasonable attempt to notify the parent or eligible student.;
 

ii. The parent or eligible student is provided, upon request, a hearing as described in this
policy; and.
 

iii. The parent or eligible student is afforded, upon request, a hearing as described in this
policy.;
 

c. Appropriate parties in connection with a health or safety emergency, subject to certain
conditions, when such disclosure is necessary to protect the health or safety of the student
or others.;
 

d. State and federal educational and other agencies for purposes of investigation and auditing,
when those agencies are bound by the provisions of the Family Educational Rights and
Privacy Act FERPA.;
 

e. Persons seeking directory information, when the district has provided parents and eligible
students with proper notice of the district’s policy to disclose directory information without
consent and the parent or eligible student has not notified the district, in writing, on or
before the first day of the school term that they object to the disclosure of some or all of the
information designated as directory information.;
 

f. The parents of a student who is not an eligible student or to the student.;
 

g. The parents of an eligible student who remains a dependent student, as defined in the
Internal Revenue Code.;
 



4/20/23, 4:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 8/9

h. Accrediting organizations to carry out their accrediting functions; and.
 

i. Comply with the terms of a judicial order or lawfully-issued subpoena, when the district has
made reasonable effort to notify the parent or eligible student of the order or subpoena in
advance of compliance, unless the terms of the subpoena or order bars such notification.
 

3. When required by law, third parties will be obligated to comply with redisclosure requirements.
Miscellaneous Provisions
 
The policy of the district is to comply with the requirement of state and federal law governing the
maintenance of records and other personally identifiable information and the privacy rights of students
and their families. To the extent that any provision of this policy is construed as or found to be
inconsistent with federal or state law, the district will treat that provision as null and void.
 
The district shall send or deliver all notices and requests for consent required under this policy to the
address identified as the residence of the child in the registration information maintained by the district.
Unless it receives specific written information to the contrary, the district shall presume that all persons
with authority to make educational decisions for the student have received or had the opportunity to
review and respond to notices and requests sent or delivered to such address. The district will send
notices and requests to separate addresses only when:
 

1. A person with joint authority to make educational decisions for the student, such as a divorced or
separated natural parent/guardian, resides at that separate address.

Legal 1. 20 U.S.C. 1232g

2. 22 PA Code 12.31

3. 22 PA Code 12.32

4. 22 PA Code 15.9

5. 22 PA Code 4.52

6. 24 P.S. 1305-A

7. 24 P.S. 1306-A

8. 24 P.S. 1402

9. 24 P.S. 1409

10. 24 P.S. 1532

11. 24 P.S. 1533

12. 34 CFR Part 300

13. 34 CFR Part 99

14. 34 CFR 99.3

15. Pol. 113

16. 34 CFR 99.4

17. 20 U.S.C. 1401

18. 22 PA Code 14.101

19. 34 CFR 300.8

20. Pol. 212

21. Pol. 213

22. Pol. 215

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1232g
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.31.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.32.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter15/s15.9.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter4/s4.52.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=6&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=14&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=14&sctn=9&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=15&sctn=32&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=15&sctn=33&subsctn=0
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-300
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-99
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.3
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.4
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1401
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter14/s14.101.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.8


4/20/23, 4:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 9/9

23. 34 CFR 99.7

24. 34 CFR 99.10

25. 34 CFR 99.11

26. 34 CFR 99.12

27. 34 CFR 99.20

28. 34 CFR 99.21

29. 34 CFR 99.22

30. 34 CFR 99.37

31. 34 CFR 99.30-99.39

32. 34 CFR 99.31

33. 34 CFR 99.32

34. Pol. 113.4

35. 35 P.S. 450.404-A

36. Pol. 800

37. Pol. 235

22 PA Code 16.65

35 P.S. 450.401-A et seq

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq

Pol. 113.1

Pol. 216.1

Pol. 801

http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.7
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.10
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.11
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.12
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.20
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.21
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.22
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.37
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-99/subpart-D
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.31
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/99.32
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1953&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=66&chpt=4A&sctn=4&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter16/s16.65.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1953&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=066&chpt=4A
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-33


4/20/23, 4:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/4

Book Policy Manual

Section 200 Pupils

Title Student Discipline

Code 218

Status First Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised July 25, 2022

Prior Revised
Dates

7/25/2016, 8/24/2020

Purpose
 
The Board recognizes that student conduct is closely related to learning. An effective educational
program requires a safe and orderly school environment.
 
Authority
 
The Board shall establish fair, reasonable and nondiscriminatory rules and regulations regarding the
conduct of all students in the district.[1][2][3][4][5]
 
The Board shall adopt a Code of Student Conduct/Disciplinary Action Schedule to govern student
discipline, and students shall not be subject to disciplinary action because of race, age, sex, color,
religion, creed, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, ancestry, marital status,
pregnancy or handicap/disability. Each student must adhere to Board policies, administrative
guidelines/regulations and the Code of Student Conduct/Disciplinary Action Schedule governing student
discipline.[1][2][4][5][6][7][8]
 
The Board prohibits the use of corporal punishment by district staff to discipline students for violations
of Board policies, the Code of Student Conduct/Disciplinary Action Schedule and district rules and
administrative guidelines/regulations.[9]
 
Any student disciplined by a district employee shall have the right to be informed of the nature of the
infraction and the applicable rule or rules violated.[10]
 
When suspensions and expulsions are imposed, they shall be carried out in accordance with Board
policy.[7][10]
 
In the case of a student with a disability, including a student for whom an evaluation is pending, the
district shall take all steps required to comply with state and federal laws and regulations, the
procedures set forth in the memorandum of understanding with local law enforcement, and Board

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.3.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.4.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.3.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.4.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.2.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.5.html&d=reduce


4/20/23, 4:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/4

policies and administrative guidelines/regulations.[5][7][11][12][13][14]
 
On and Off-Campus Activities
 
This policy and the Code of Student Conduct/Disciplinary Action Schedule apply to the behavior of
students at all times during the time they are under the supervision of the school, which specifically
includes while under the supervision of the district as part of a cyber program or other virtual program,
or at any time while on school property, while present at school-sponsored activities, and while traveling
to or from school and school-sponsored activities or at other times while riding in school-provided
means of transportation (“on-campus”).[3]
 
This policy and the Code of Student Conduct/Disciplinary Action Schedule also apply to
student behavior that occurs at other times and places (“off-campus”) when:[3]
 

1. The conduct involves, threatens or makes more likely violence, use of force or other serious harm
directed at students, staff or the school environment;
 

2. The conduct materially and substantially disrupts or interferes with the school environment or the
educational process, such as  school activities, school work, discipline, safety and order on school
property or at school functions;
 

3. The conduct interferes with or threatens to interfere with the rights of students or school staff or
the safe and orderly operation of the schools and their programs; 
 

4. The conduct involves the theft or vandalism of school property; or
 

5. The proximity, timing or motive for the conduct in question or other factors pertaining to the
conduct otherwise establish a direct connection to attendance at school, to the school
community, or to a school-sponsored activity. This would include, for example, but not be limited
to, conduct that would violate the Code of Student Conduct/Disciplinary Action Schedule if it
occurred in school that is committed in furtherance of a plan made or agreed to in school, or acts
of vandalism directed at the property of school staff because of their status as school staff.

 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that reasonable and necessary rules and regulations are
developed to implement Board policy governing student conduct.
 
The Superintendent or designee shall publish and distribute to all staff, students and parents/guardians
the rules and regulations for student behavior contained in the Code of Student Conduct/Disciplinary
Action Schedule, the sanctions that may be imposed for violations of those rules, and a listing of
students’ rights and responsibilities. A copy of the Code of Student Conduct/Disciplinary Action
Schedule shall be available in each school library and school office and may be included in student
handbooks and on the district website.[1][8]
 
The building principal shall have the authority to assign discipline to students, subject to Board policies,
administrative guidelines/regulations, the Code of Student Conduct/Disciplinary Action Schedule and
school rules, and to the student's due process right to notice, hearing, and appeal, when such due
process rights exist.[7][10][15][16]
 
Teaching staff and other district employees responsible for students shall have the authority to take
reasonable actions, including the assignment of disciplinary action, necessary to control the conduct of
students in all situations and in all places where students are within the jurisdiction of this Board, and

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-33
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.3.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=17&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=18&subsctn=0


4/20/23, 4:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/4

when such conduct interferes with the educational program of the schools or threatens the health and
safety of others, in accordance with Board policy, administrative guidelines/regulations, the Code of
Student Conduct/Disciplinary Action Schedule and school rules.[15]
 
Reasonable force may be used by teachers and school authorities under any of the following
circumstances: to quell a disturbance, obtain possession of weapons or other dangerous objects, for the
purpose of self-defense, and for the protection of persons or property.[9]
 
Referral to Law Enforcement and Reporting Requirements
 
For reporting purposes, the term incident shall mean an instance involving an act of violence; the
possession of a weapon; the possession, use, or sale of a controlled substance or drug paraphernalia as
defined in the Pennsylvania Controlled Substance, Drug, Device and Cosmetic Act; the possession, use,
or sale of alcohol or tobacco; or conduct that constitutes an offense listed under the Safe Schools Act.
[17][18][19]
 
The Superintendent or designee shall immediately report required incidents and may report
discretionary incidents committed by students on school property, at any school-sponsored activity or
on a conveyance providing transportation to or from a school or school-sponsored activity to the local
police department that has jurisdiction over the school’s property, in accordance with state law and
regulations, the procedures set forth in the memorandum of understanding with local law enforcement
and Board policies and administrative guidelines/regulations.[14][17][18][20][21][22]
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify the parent/guardian of any student directly involved in an
incident as a victim or suspect immediately, as soon as practicable. The Superintendent or designee
shall inform the parent/guardian whether or not the local police department that has jurisdiction over
the school property has been or may be notified of the incident. The Superintendent or designee shall
document attempts made to reach the parent/guardian.[14][17][23]
 
In accordance with state law, the Superintendent shall annually, by July 31, report all new incidents to
the Office for Safe Schools on the required form.[14][18][24][25][26][27]
 
When a student’s behavior indicates a threat to the safety of the student, other students, school
employees, school facilities, the community or others, district staff shall report the student to the threat
assessment team, in accordance with applicable law and Board policy and administrative
guidelines/regulations.[28][29]
 
The Superintendent shall report to the Board the methods of discipline imposed by administrators and
incidences of student misconduct, in the degree of specificity required by the Board.

Legal 1. 22 PA Code 12.3

2. 22 PA Code 12.4

3. 24 P.S. 510

4. Pol. 103

5. Pol. 103.1

6. 22 PA Code 12.2

7. Pol. 113.1

8. Pol. 235

9. 22 PA Code 12.5

10. Pol. 233

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=17&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.5.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1972&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=64&chpt=0&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.21.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.22.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=2&subsctn=1
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.25.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13E&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.3.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.4.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.2.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.5.html&d=reduce


4/20/23, 4:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 4/4

11. 22 PA Code 10.23

12. 20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq

13. Pol. 113.2

14. Pol. 805.1

15. 24 P.S. 1317

16. 24 P.S. 1318

17. 22 PA Code 10.2

18. 24 P.S. 1303-A

19. 35 P.S. 780-102

20. 22 PA Code 10.21

21. 22 PA Code 10.22

22. 24 P.S. 1302.1-A

23. 22 PA Code 10.25

24. Pol. 218.1

25. Pol. 218.2

26. Pol. 222

27. Pol. 227

28. 24 P.S. 1302-E

29. Pol. 236.1

35 P.S. 780-101 et seq

22 PA Code 12.1 et seq

22 PA Code 403.1

20 U.S.C. 7114

34 CFR Part 300

Mahanoy Area School District v. B.L., 594 U.S. ____ (2021)

Pol. 122

Pol. 123

Pol. 805

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-33
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=17&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=18&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1972&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=64&chpt=0&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.21.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.22.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=2&subsctn=1
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter10/s10.25.html&d=reduce
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13E&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1972&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0064.
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/chap12toc.html&d=
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter403/s403.1.html&d=reduce
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/7114
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-300


4/20/23, 4:29 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/1

Book Policy Manual

Section 800 Operations

Title Electronic Data Storage Guidelines

Code 830AG1

Status First Reading

The defined terms in Policy 830 shall have the same meaning when used herein.
 
The District may establish and enforce reasonable security measures on any vendor and/or device
accessing its information systems.

Third Party Storage

The Director of Information Technology or their designee shall periodically review security, audit and
related documents and reports from vendors under District contract which house personal information
or sensitive electronic data. The District shall solicit and review these documents and reports to ensure
that commercially reasonable security is in place prior to entering into new or renewing existing
agreements.

District Personnel Storage and Transmission of Personal Information or Sensitive Data

District personnel shall only maintain electronic files containing personal information or sensitive
electronic data on District-owned or managed storage.

District personnel shall not transmit documents containing personal information without encryption or
other security measure such as password protection.

District personnel shall not discuss personal information or sensitive electronic data in any public areas,
hallways, gathering spaces, or other similar public spaces.

District personnel shall keep their computer access password(s) confidential. If another method of
accessing a computer system is used, personnel shall restrict its use for themselves only.

Miscellaneous

The District shall maintain electronic file backup protocols, including off-site backup.

The District shall maintain and periodically update, as needed, an Incident Response Plan.



4/20/23, 4:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/2

Book Policy Manual

Section 000 Local Board Procedures

Title Copy of Broadcasting Board Meetings

Code 006.3

Status First Reading

Adopted March 28, 2022

Last Revised March 28, 2022

Purpose
 
The Board recognizes the value of public awareness regarding school district issues and discussions, as
well as the usefulness of broadcasting the proceedings of publicly convened meetings. It appreciates
the fact that a well-informed public is an asset to the entire school district.
 
Authority
 
The Board directs the district to record and live stream video and audio of all public meetings of the
Board, which include regular and special Board of School Director meetings, and regular and special
Board committee meetings. The public meetings will be live streamed at the time of the public meeting
on a publicly available streaming service of the district’s choosing, and the district will inform the public
of the platform via the district website. The recording of the public meeting will be published, either on
the district’s website or on another publicly available website with access information available on the
district’s website, within three (3) business days of the conclusion of the public meeting.
 
The video and/or audio recording of any public meeting created or produced by the district is the
exclusive property of the district. The district shall retain the video and/or audio recordings in
accordance with Board Policy 800 and its administrative guidance guidelines. After the initial live
stream, the audio and/or video recording of any public meeting created or produced by the district may
be used at the discretion of the Board for any appropriate district purpose.[1]
 
The video and/or audio recording of any public meeting created or produced by the district or a member
of the public is not the official record of the meeting. The Board or committee approved written minutes
are the official record of the meeting.
 
Notification
 
The published agenda available at the public meeting and on the district website will state that the
public meetings are being live streamed and recorded for the purpose of public broadcast and posting
on the Internet, and shall include a notification disclaiming responsibility for both images, statements



4/20/23, 4:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/2

and/or actions made by those in attendance at the recorded public meetings. Notice will be provided to
all in attendance that the public meeting is being live streamed and recorded for posting on the
Internet.
 
Procedure
 
It is the Board's intent to live stream and post video and audio recorded public Board meetings in their
entirety. However, the Board recognizes that unforeseeable malfunctions of equipment or the network,
disruptions in platform or Internet access, unexpected operator unavailability or error, or weather
events may occur, which may limit the district’s ability to live stream or post a public meeting in whole
or in part. In such an event, the district shall publish the available portion of the public meeting in
accordance with this policy.   
 
Obscene and profane statements or gestures made by those in attendance at the meeting may be
subject to editing, as allowable by law.
 
The video recording will be made by at least one (1) operable camera that will be primarily focused on
the Board, the Superintendent, administration, and the Board Secretary. Audio will also capture all
those recognized to formally address the Board, and may capture members of the audience. The
camera may visually capture persons formally addressing the Board from the podium and members of
the audience.
 
Attendees do not have an expectation of privacy during a public meeting. Attendance at a public
meeting will be considered consent for audio and video recording by the district and for the use of any
images or statements of those in attendance. The opinions or statements made during the public
meeting are those of the individuals, and not necessarily the opinions or statements of the district. The
district does not necessarily endorse or support the views, opinions, statements, or information
contained in the live stream or recording of the public meetings.
 
Nothing in this policy shall be construed to permit the video recording of Board executive sessions,
conferences, and other nonpublic meetings.

Legal 1. Pol. 800

Pol. 006

Pol. 006.1



4/20/23, 4:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/2

Book Policy Manual

Section 000 Local Board Procedures

Title Policy Development

Code 009

Status First Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Reviewed November 24, 2014

Development
 
The Board considers policy development a chief function, along with evaluation of the results achieved
through Board policies.[1]
 
Through the development and adoption of policies and the study and evaluation of reports concerning
the execution of policies, the Board shall exercise its leadership in the operation of the school district
and its control over school operations.[1]
 
It is the Board’s intention that policies serve as guides for the discretionary action of those to whom it
delegates authority and as a source of information and guidance for all individuals.
 
Review and Development
 
In an effort to keep policies up-to-date so that they may be used consistently as a basis for Board
action and administrative decision, it shall be the policy of the Board to review its policies on a
continuing basis.
 
The Board shall evaluate how the policies have been executed by the school staff and shall weigh the
results. The Board shall rely on the school staff, students, and the community for providing evidence of
the effect of adopted policies.
 
The Superintendent shall be responsible for calling to the Board’s attention all policies that are out-of-
date or need revision in light of Board actions and revisions to state and federal statutes and
regulations.[2]
 
Involvement in Development
 
The Board recognizes that student, staff and, community participation in the study of school issues can
be a valuable asset.
 
Policy proposals or revisions shall be referred to the Superintendent for administrative study and
recommendation prior to consideration and action by the Board.
 



4/20/23, 4:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/2

Implementation
 
The Superintendent shall be responsible for implementing through administrative regulations
guidelines, the policies established by the Board.[1][3]
 
All staff members shall be responsible for adhering to Board policies and for abiding by the
administrative regulations guidelines designed to implement them.

Legal 1. Pol. 003

2. Pol. 007

3. Pol. 000

24 P.S. 407

24 P.S. 510

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0


WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

April 24, 2023 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
 

CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTION 
 

Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of March 1, 2023 to March 31, 2023 

 
The Treasurer’s Report includes the schedules of the School District’s cash balances 
for the General Fund, Activity/Trust Funds, and Cafeteria Fund; the investments 
schedule for the General Fund, Capital Reserve and Capital Project Funds; the 
schedule of disbursements for all funds, and the debit memos and check register for all 
funds. The Statement of Disbursements Summary Lists total expenditures by fund for 
the period.  
 
Approval is requested for the Treasurer’s Report and the disbursements listed on the 
Statement of Disbursements Summary for the period of March 1 to March 31, 2023 
totaling $36,266,082.19.  
 
 
I so move. 
 
 
 
 
The Treasurer’s Report is available in its entirety on the business office webpage and in 
the Board Meeting packet posted on School Board webpage at www.wcasd.net.  Please 
contact the School Board Secretary for any hard copies of the report. 
 
 
John T. Scully 
School Board Treasurer  
 
 
 

http://www.wcasd.net/




































































WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

April 24, 2023 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
 

CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTION 
 

Approval of the March 31, 2023 Financial Report 
 

 
 
Approval is requested for the West Chester School District Financial Report for the month 
ending March 31, 2023.  
 
I so move. 
 
2022-23 General Fund Financial Analysis 
 
The expenses and revenues as of March 2023 represent 9 months of financial activity for the 
District. To date we have collected $186.4 million in real estate taxes which is $6.9 million over 
budget.   Outstanding taxes not collected by December 31st were submitted to the County on 
January 15 for a property tax lien and collection efforts in accordance with PA tax collection law. 
Year-to-date we have collected $1.6 million in interim taxes which is $750,000 over budget and 
is due to the new construction within the District. We will continue to receive interim tax 
revenues throughout the remainder of the school year.   
 
We have received local revenues totaling $217.9 million or 103.3% of our budget. This amount 
is slightly ahead of last year as a % of total budget and is driven by increases in current real 
estate tax collections, earned income and investment earnings. Based on local revenue trends 
from the previous year and our current YTD collections, we have increased our revenue 
projections for earned income tax (EIT) by $3.1 million, transfer tax by $863,700 and investment 
earnings by $2.2 million. The Governor did approve a PA state budget in June that included 
increases in state-wide Basic Education (BEF) and Special Education funding (SEF) that 
resulted in an increase in BEF of $1.4 million and an increase in SEF of $131,600. 
Transportation subsidy is calculated as a reimbursement formula based on the previous year’s 
actual costs. We have reduced our projected transportation subsidy by $137,600 due to 
decreased costs in the previous year.  We have increased our federal revenues related to 
Medical Access by $76,000 and Covid related grants by $300,000.    
 
On the expense side for 2022-23, we have revised our projections for salaries and benefits 
related to average teacher salary in the amount of $985,533, adjusted salary projections based 
on new headcount and attritional savings netting a decrease in salaries by $29,000, increased 
teacher extra duty payments in the amount of $300,000, increased clerical overtime by $10,000 
and legal fees by $25,000 due to increased RTK requests, reduced professional and technical 
service for contracted aides by $200,000, reduced our charter school tuitions by $2.3 million due 
to lower than anticipated enrollment and tuition rates, reduced our transportation projections by 
$700,000 and revised our debt service expense in the amount of $100,000.   
 
And as you can see on the statement, we have budgeted $296.9 million in expenses and $263.4 
million in revenues this year and we budgeted to use $33.5 million of our fund balance to close 
the gap between the expenses and revenues.  
 



Our fund balance is projected to be $66.1 million at June 30th 2023, but we anticipate using 
$31.6 million to reduce the tax increase for the 2023-24 school year.  
 
This concludes the financial report. 
John T. Scully, School Board Treasurer 



































WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

April 24, 2023 
 

Other Business 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

 
 
 
Approval of Amendment to the Settlement Agreement and Release 
with William H. Clinger Corporation  
Approval is requested of the Amendment to the Settlement Agreement and Release and 
settlement sum in the amount of $600,000 to William H. Clinger Corporation. 
 
I so move. 
 
 
 
 
 


	a Board Agenda 2023.04
	b 2023.03.27 minutes draft
	c 2023.04.24 PR
	d Consent agenda
	IX.  School Board Reports
	Background

	e April 24 Edu Com Board Packet
	1. Action Items Apr.pdf
	April 24 Edu Comm Action Packet.pdf
	Ed Committee April Final
	2. Ed Committee Minutes April.pdf
	Ed Committee April Packet.pdf

	3. ACT and FT Apr
	2. 22-23 SB Calendar final Draft to Board 2.28.22


	f April 24 PS Action Packet
	h 4.24.23 PFC Action packet
	4.24.23 PFC ACTION items
	Property & Finance Committee
	April 24, 2023 – ACTION ITEMS

	4.17.23 PFC Committee Minutes
	Resolution re Croll Trust 4.10.23
	4.17.23 APRIL Resolution Adopting 2023-24 Proposed Final Budget

	i April 24 Policy Rev Comm Action Packet
	.Action Items April 24
	2023.04.17 Policy Review Comm Minutes draft
	b Policy 251 Stu Exp Homlessness, Foster Care or other, 2nd R
	c Policy 830 Electronic Data Storage, 2nd R
	d Policy 003 Functions, 2nd R
	e Policy 004 Membership, 2nd R
	f Policy 005 Organization, 2nd R
	g 005AG1 Board Organization Guidelines, 2nd R
	g Policy 113.1 Discipline of Students with Disabilities, 1st R
	h Policy 216 Student Records, 1st R
	i Policy 218 Student Discipline, 1st R
	j New AG 830AG1 Electronic Data Storage Guidelines, 1st R
	k Policy 006.3 Broadcast Board Meetings, 1st R
	l Policy 009 Policy Development, 1st R

	j1 2023.04.24 Treasurers Report packet
	Mar 2023 treasurers report
	2023.04 April Treasurer's Report
	Statement of Disbursements 3.1.23 - 3.31.23

	j2 2023.04.24 Financial Report packet
	Mar 2023 finreport
	Rev and Exp Rpt 3.1.23 - 3.31.23

	j3 OB i so move April



